


NOTICE

THE BEST COPIES OBTAINABLE ARE
INCLUDED IN THE REPRODUCTION
OF THE FILE. PAGES INCLUDED
THAT ARE BLURRED, LIGHT OR
OTHERWISE DIFFICULT TO READ
ARE THE RESULT OF THE CONDITION
AND OR COLOR OF THE ORIGINALS
PROVIDED. THESE ARE THE BEST

- COPIES AVAILABLE.
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FD-36 (Reév. 3-13-56)

L]
. . . X Mr. Tolson
. . © . Mr. Nichols ___
’ ~) - L Mr. Boa
Mr., Belmont
Mr. Miuhy
Mr. ¥arsons____

Date: 5/18/57 Mr. Kogen .
ATRTEL :: Tamm ..____

. Trotter.
. AT Mr. Negse e
SC’ Ca s Tele. Room.
— Mr. Holloman____
Miss Gandy._____

FBI

.,

Transmit the following message via

(Priority or Method of Mailing)

T0: DIRECTOR, FBI ot Eo 39912@%{1:.
2

FROM: SAC, NEW YORK (65-17264) 4“{ 11
SUBJECT: UNSUB, wa "STONE", AMERICAN KNOWN /
TO REINO WAYHANEN AS A SOVIET AGENT  \.

ESPIONAGE \ R
00 - NY

on 5/6/57, subject advisedm sbl

that "MARK" had agent, cryptonym was "STONE", who was
convicted of espionage in 1955 or 1956 and sentenced to
thirty years imprisonment. "“STONE" had wife named 'ROSA"
and it was dangerous to attempt to contact "ROSA" after
the conviction.,

, On 5/17/57, subject questioned re knowledge %
of "STONE" and"STONE's" wife, "ROSA". SubJect stated that M,P’Dy
he never met "STONE", did not know when "STONE" was M

arrested, but was Eo_los.’n.t'.ive arrest was prior to his-coming
_SQ_HS..QDSu‘S:}ecE ext ted four newspaper photographs of /
MORTON SOBELL taken 1950-1956, SubJject unable to identify
any photograph. Subject stated that "MARK" told him

‘sub.ject) that "STONE" was convicted, date uncertain, and
"STONE" was connected with ROSENBERG case.

i

SubjJject stated that he has never met
"STONE'!'S" wife. Five photographs of HELEN SOBELL, wife
of MORTON SOBELL, exhibited to subJect. Subject identified
a newspaper photograph of HELEN SOBELL as identical with
photograph given him by "MARK" for subject!s assistance in
location of HELEN SOBELL. SubJect stated that "MARK" told
him HELEN SOBELL lived on 137th St., or ég9th St. Subject 71
stated that he did not check out above a ss =

L e wbove wIF 2 g ¥ 3/ 3

" vl ]
154 8"1,'?!:,__?_1 7 .-
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. 9-30 (nev. 5-19-36)

A

I - .t FBI ‘

~ B ol —TDC!te!
Py |

ol o N .

Transmit the following message via

(Priority or Method of Maiiiug)

NY 65-17265

Subject stated that he and "MARK" burried
$5000,00, which was to be given to HELEN SOBELL,in two
drops at Bear Mt. When "MARK" left for Moscow, he (subject)
was to plck up money and give to HELEN SOBELL, However,
he picked up money and kept same,

Photograph of HELEN SOBELL identified by
subject was newspaper photograph as set out in New York
"Mirror" newspaper, dated August 19, 1950.

Re address furnished to subject by "MARK"
for HELEN SOBELL, itis noted that HELEN SOBELL has maintained
Br past five years address of 506 West 135th St., NYC, and/or
2400 Davidson Ave., ¢/o LOUIS SOBELL, Bronx, NY, LOUIS
SOBELL 1is father of MORTON SOBELL,

Above for info,.

KELLY

Approved: Sent —_ M Per
PP Special Agent in Charge
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R, SAC, WY YORX (65-1T259)
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B3? - R T0 DISSEMINATIOE N

SEE F - K~ B - V.

RaBphcnesall to New York, %/25/57.

en ‘ FAYBANTYN advised that ' bad
agemt, ery wﬁg@“m Convisted cfmm in
1955 or 1956 and ssmtenced te 0 years Lmpaiscement,
On 5/X7/57 EAVMANTY .dentified newspeper
of \muu&imm%ﬁ?mw nm |
by "MARK. for MAYEANFY's ossistance in losstion ef S0ERLL. -.
AN Brdiie y N\
 HAXHRREN furiier stated en that he ws given
,000,00 }7"MARK" whish was %0 be given him to u.g N,
2,.,, );fg s =1 the N
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STANDARD PORM MO, 84 ‘ ‘ "
Dﬂ‘ic‘e Memo“;*kndum « UNITED STATRS GOVERNMENT

wr.

TO .s+  DIRECTOR, FBI (101-2483) ®  T/15/57

. ez o
“,_.,_.nwm~ “

a-;: ‘ N
p nY lottor 5/25/57. ,

MO R Koo T T
MR Acht loforonced Burékuéi 'fﬁ!t 1a addition
ite ldentifying the owners of beauty parlors located between S
“139th and 142nd Stre roadway, NY, NY,'to determime if
. subjeet's wife, OBELL, had or has any interest in any

~ of these shops, t be reinterviewed eoncerning -
the address of this beauty shop since the 1400 blook of-‘rz~.=
‘Broadway, the number mentioned by informant, is not located
between 139th and 142nd streets on Broaduay but 1; 1n the
-vicinity ct tinea 8qnarc i e

'*'f'thc 1dent1ty or owncrs of tho beauty shopa located

between 139th and 142nd Streets on Broadway is being determined

from avallable sources but a reinterview of the informant will

" be delayed inasmuch as interviews with him have temporarily

/. been suspended for the last several weeks. Upon resumption

/. . of interview of informant, he will be questioned concerning
"“thil natter and tho Bnreau uill be pronptly adviaed S ;
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Oﬂice Memomndurz * UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT
w0

TO  : MR. A. H. BELMONva } DATE: july 16, 1957

! ‘4 son
reoM : MR, D. E. MOORE/ fﬁ/ﬂ‘/ 15 :

Patsons
Rosen
Tamm

SUBJBC F’INCAS_:E_I
ESPIONAGE (R)

Trotter
Nease
Tele. Room _
Holloman —

Gand
Re attached memo from you to Mr. Boardman in which it was recom\{nez‘ded
and approved that we suggest to the Department that they consider dropping \
$ -from the proposed indictment at this time and also consider including wd
as part of the indictment the information concermng Helen‘Sobell L\ l) 'I’?

/I- e S ""‘”’—‘_— -
This was discussed with Departmen“tzl—attorne
Kevin Maroney on July 15, 1957, and they advised will be dropped
l from any indictment. Both wdvised they will give consideretioa to including -
information about Helen Sobell in the Registration Act count of the indictment
but at the present time they feel that such inclusion might appear obviously
cade for pwWlicity purposes. Hall advised on July 16 that inasmuch as
Hayhancu has not expressed a willingness to testify they are not in a b l
position to proceed with grand jury action and will continue to consider :

m_Hall and

-t

Y473,

~
-~

the Helen Sobell possibility but are inclined to feel it would be inadvisable N
to include this material. Hall stated that shovld Hoyhanew agree to be a q\
witness, they are all set up to proceed with taking, this moetter before \’3
a grand jury and he expected an indictment coula pe returned within a . J >
matter of hours should it be necessary. L/
PeCLOSUES 2 2-3483 =
- i, Ak ~—~An ""\“ 4
ACTION:
A »/ Ko R i \
For information. B N
: S sse e
Enclosure ‘K\
DEM:mB" CL ol  ——n %
€C-= uro mont A <. “ a
Mr. Moore T s <
Mr. Branigaa — =
Mr. Litreato - 2
(5) 3
Lo 3
LIS LN
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A roms . 84 (K A
Oﬂice Memoﬁmdum e UNITED smls GOVERNMENT

0O DIRECTOR, FBI (101-.24.&) DATE: 0/6/87

C, NEW YORK (100-87153)

FROM

. SUBJECT: xoxroan. was
. nsmom R

‘ unom. GUARDIAN newipaper, 1asus dated 0/5/51, page :. reflects
editorial advising readers that en 9/4/57, defense lawyers for MORTON 8SOBELL
will petitien the Suprems Court for o« review of his cm&otion. and that aa
smious ourise brut will _socompany the petition. .

" Page & reflects amious curise brief bhnk to be signed by readers
and mailed with a eontributtu to the COMMITTER TO SBCURE JUSTICE FOR MORTON
S0BELL, 940 Broadway, NIC. Same page explains matwre of amicus curise dbrief;
briefly reviews BOBELL's trial; quotes Irom a letter from SUBELL's wife, ™ o
6illing the mew appesl, “Owr moment of greatest hops", dnd mentions the improving
situation for individual liberties msnifested by the Supreme Court. Request is
made fer réturn of signed smicus ourise driefs by August I8th, for imclusion ~
with the appeal %o be filed Septesmber 4th,\Ehe readers are advised that regional
offices 6f the SOEELL COMMITTERE will lupply uditloml eopies of the brief.

_..For information. The Buresu will be kept advised of developments.

) ?‘,x?’“:»-ﬁw .
S

= BUREAU gmx-uu) “(3ax)

- EEN YORK (100-107111)
- EKEW YORE (100-37158)
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OUSANDB ‘of Amerlcan-

individuals and organi-
zations will be .approached
this month by Communist
lupporters anxious to
“Squeeze money from them
to blacken the name of
America.

The ‘Communist - backed

drive i3 aimed at winning _
signatures—and funds—for -
- athird a
‘ to the .
preme Court for a new trial .
for atomic spy consplraf.or

al in September
nited States , Su:

-,;Mlorton Sobell. .
" The phony clalm of’ “antl:

 Semitism will be raised in .
“the nation-wide campaign to

make people forget the ad-

. mitted antiJewish activities

in the Boviet Umon and the
satellites.

The ‘pro-Communist "Na'

tional Guardian” announced
the . kickoff of the new

drive fof the gmicus curiae .

(friend of the co
tures by the “Co

) signa-
ttee to

Becure Justice tor Morwn'”

8obell.”
This Communist n-ont—ou
the U. 8. Attorney General’s

- subversive list—was formed .
orlglnany in 853 to detend .‘

’

- - Join in righ -’

By JACK LO’l'.l‘o
- Anternationsl Nows'Servies Writsr

the executed Rounbergs as
well as Sobell, now sérving
30 years in A.lcatraz prison.

Through the use of fraud
and mlsrepresentatlon. ‘the
committee collected over a
half million dollars from
well-meaniig persons and

the money was used to vility -

the U. 8. and its intitutions.

Encourafed by the récent
Supreme Court -¢ulings
which upheld Communist
appeals in certain cases, the
Red backers thought they

saw new opportunities to.
‘eaplitalize on the situation.

Baid a Gugrdian editorial:
“A new trial for 80bell

.even a Hearing for

trial, would further.

tion which bronght about‘f'

death 8entences: for the

Rosenbergs and & 30-year

term for BSobell.- We most
fervently urge your. sigha
mreandsupport.

- “This is an o portunityto

wrong and restoring Amer}-
ean justice

which s its tion.”

Xﬁm‘ aQ&w;n..W;o. v~ cssg .ol

great. .
 the high level

- e e

t e K

'r‘

Red Backed Drwe Commg J

the court wlth ugnmre.
states; ' Vet

" “Morton Sobell’s’ pment
appeals offer documentary ..

evidence that the prosecu-

tion knowingly used fraud -
and perjury to obtain his -

conviction. None of the new
evidence has been refuted.”

This: statement is faise.
Such socalled “new -evi-

‘dence” was reviewed by the .
lower courts and the ap -

peals courts and rejected.

. Federal Judge Irving
Kaufman, in an opinfon of °
evermpagesonnsoheu :

appeal declared:

i *The petition is so entirely ’

devold of merit that perhaps
it has been unduly dignified
by the minute consid
and analysis it has
in this oplnion.” fox
The judge explamed he
had given the petition de
tailed attention in order to
“lay to rest with finality

§

" baseleks conténtions and a¢- ©

cusations which ‘have 1}

ved -
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Assistant Attorney General
Filliam 7. Tompkins August 21, 1957

b(nctor, FAI

"QOMI =
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‘mam

v . 7 sdditionsl informatien eonserning this matter is
bta
_:_)ohi‘o .uu and further details will e furaished Se

- tnformatlion by word of mouth .
:hn is regarded by \hrdcn Madigan as a "go-between" for .
- Sobe 11 nnd tho lobou Defense Conittu. San hmuco

(loto ccntnmtd on mo 2)
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Decooe OF CODED MESSAGE NUMBER 566 DATED AUGUST 13, 1957 AT :

MEXICO CITY, MEXICO. RECEIVED VIA AIRGRAM.. | (8

NATIONAL COMMITTEE TO SECURE JUST|GE IN THE noscuamc CASE,
MY

100382835 -1"
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", FEDERAL BUREAU-OF INVESTIGATION
i P L

REPORTING OFFICR . 10!7!6! OF ORIGIN | DATE :

MEW YonK:w sy W yoRx i B/e8/sy. {310 15417%,0:12,35,22,

e -

et —’_',‘,-’{‘W'"'-“" BY “ .. . =+ “|reezpmY
Lo SE_-..,MV‘ 1. TRICHARD P, HRADSKY . ..~ ~ el
3 = ’ S - .

‘: Loeit A .

T NORTON SOBELL, was ‘- . . - ~
cer T U e e ESPIONAGE - R
sYNODBIS: P
‘ A

.. o . Observaticn of former residence of HELEN . L
L.t om0 SOBELL at-506 West 135th Street, NYC, reflects =~ 7
77 that it is the fourth numbered entrance :
from the corner of Amste Avenue, Beauty
shops located between 1 d 142nd Street
on Broadway, NYC, identified, and the names of
the owners obtained. NYC telephone directories
-, reflect a beauty shop listing for one HELENE
—KSCBEL, Beauty Salon, 602 West 1iSth Street,
NYC, and a HELENE SOBEL at 601 West 141st
Y"\ _8treet, NYC. Telephone service was instituted
, " %o the Helene Sobel Beauty Salon in 1939.
- . - Rental records of 30 Charlton Street, NYC,
. , .. where HELEN SOBELL resides at present,
’ .7 reflect that the first month's rent was paid
/- on December 1, 1956. .

i ! g
£ e . N
. '-: ‘\'v\y.\ -~ .
. - . . - . . .
-
APPROVED ©  SPECIAL AGENT ~

.. T lweaygs 1396
o DECLABSIFIED OF _ /z3/87 - INDEXED } 25
T e

"AGENCY y .

e REQ.RICD

& AUG 30 1957
\ , i
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- PROPmT?FGISEaPpgt is mo you by the FBI, and neither it nor its contents are to be distributed outside the agency to which'locn_xed,
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N e L U CHAT N
S & ﬂy 8, 1957, 1, aaother govem-an
rhich condnctl intelligence investigations, adv LR
“that mtorntion was raceived on May 6, 1957, frgs A
‘{ -2, eoted 11l1gg 80 6t intelligence agen?, %k
“he. “1eax-ne arhon he Inew {o be &1 ulega
Soviet mtelligence ‘agent, that a Seviet Agent in thq i
- Tnited States "STONE" , ‘was convieted of -
elpiomge and sentenced ﬁo 30 jem ipprum t..
R R (PR VAN B F i
i TEL !—2 udvin/d that: "m" exh:lbited tlo
photographs in June, 1955, one of which was a snapshot
evidently quite old, and the other a newpa ewpaper elipping.
"MARK" informed T-2 at this time that one “HEELEN SOBEL
or SGBELL" was the wife of a man who had been semtenced
t:i 22!‘ years tor espionase on buil of incoimclusive -
® co i} T

= "m.nx" had §5 ow hieh Be' m been ‘imtmétet

to give to "NELEN", "MARK" alleged to T~2 that he had.

“‘mot been able to f£ind "EELEN" either becaise he ims.’ -

unable to or because he was concerned about going to hes:

Yeaut):y shop because of the Federal hrean of Invent:l;ati.on
FBI). . _ -

"
-'f ~T A

: '1'-2 adviaed that HELEN SOBELL reaided at 306
Vest 137th or 138th Street, New York City, whieh house . _
' was Jlocated three or four doors from the corner, and that

"'she had a bueaty shop located betveen 139th and lhmd A

Strpeto -GR nrudm m Yoﬁ: “‘?

CF T e ey 13. 1957, 3-2 mma mt’“m" Ba
wema hin during the lasi half of 1956, that Moscow-
" wanted to ¥now if NELEN SOBELL could be used as an agent.

‘ T-2 stated that the beauty shop, supposedly
~ operated by HELEN SOBELL,was not necessanily that of the
wife of "STONE"} however, he stated that/bne time, while




ttte.pting S&' 1oute nml somu., he located a beanty
" shep under the namg of n!lel SQBBLL in the lanhattan
_telq:hone diroctory. G

HERTR m m 17. 1957. '!‘-2 1dent1tied a nevspuper '
)hotogmph of HELEN SOBELL as being identical with the

2.,
-

i _A,J.ocatm mxu SOBLL. “4,; cat s . Lol

B s nm SOKBI.L is the wite or ‘uon‘rol SGBELL uho
- 48 preuntly serving a 30 year sentence at the United
- States Pemitentiary, Alsatraz, Califormia, after having -

- ‘been eonvéoted in the Wnited States District Court,

Southern Pistrict of New York, om March 29, 1951, of °
conspiracy to commit espionage in behalf of the Soviet
Union. She resided at 506 West 135th Street, New York
City, but moved to 30 Charlton Stroet, !el !ork cj.ty,

.. where nhe nov relid”. Y

s g—e adviled on ml’l. 1%57, that ho had never
-ef " m nor did he know when was ‘arrested;
gowdver, hé indicated that he was positive ‘the arrest of '
S‘I'ONE“ vu prs.or to his n.rrival in the mted Statea. o

- . Informant sdtised that "MARK" told him that
""STONE" was convicted, date uncertain, and that "S‘!ONE“ ‘
was cohnected with the nosxmm case. s

\"'..'

m.ms and ETEEL ROSMRG were eonvicted 1n the

on March 20, 1951, of conspiracy to commit espionage in
Behalf of the Soviet Union. The ROSENEERGS were sentenced -
o to death on April% 1951, and were legally executed in .

L Inveltigetioa was oondueted to- deternine when -
HELEN SO0BELL moved to her current address at 30 Charlton -

-3-

. photograph givem him by "MARK" ror m- uaiatance 1 - L

... . 8
R ST "
v oy et

_' United States District. Court, Southern District.of New Yox'k. .

Sing 8ing Prison, Gesining, New Yok on June 19, 1953



NY 100-37158 —

- Street, New York 01ty, from 506 West 135th Street, ‘New i‘”
York City; where the address 506 West 135th Street,New o
"~ York City, is located in relation to the corner,

inasmuch as T-2 thought that her residence was three or
four doors removed from the corner, and to determine

the identity of the owner of beauty shops located on
Broadway between 139th and 142nd Streets, to ascertain if
HELEN SOBELL had or has an 1nterest in any of these
shops. -

Location of

506 West 136th Street -
New York City - o

in Relation to Corner

On July 11, 1957, observation of the location
506 West 135th Street, where HELEN SOBELL formerly
resided, determined that this building is located on the
south side of West 135th Street, between Broadway and
Amsterdam Avenue. The corner building faces Amsterdam
Avenue with about a 35-foot frontage and extends west
on 135th Street, for about 70 feet. The corner building
has an entrance on 135th Street known as 500 West 135th
Street. A 10 foot areaway separates the corner building
from the adjacent row of buildings of 135th Street. This
row oonsists of a series of six Joined five-story apartment
buildings which occupy the approximate middle of the block and
are numbered starting at the areaway referred to as 502 '
through 512 West 135th Street, New York City.

506 West 135th Street is the third building in
this row. This numbered entrance is the fourth from the
corner of Amsterdam Avenue,

‘Beauty Shops on Broadway - :
Between 139th and lhend Streets
~New_York 01ty '

Observation on July 11, 1957, ‘of the 1dent1ty
and location of beauty shops on Broadway, between 139th and
142nd Street, New York City, reflected the following:

-l -
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Gilbem: Bea.uty Shop
3420 Broadway . - .~
Rew York City

Hajestic Beauty Shop
3423 Broadway
New York City

Carmelitas Beauty Shop
3436 Broadway
New York City

Nerman Beauty Salon
3469 Broadway
New York City -

Tete'!s Beauty Salon
3466 Broadway
New York City
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On July 22, 1957, EDWARD L. BRAUNE, Agent,
New York Telephone Company, 140 West Street, New York City,
advised SA ROBERT D. WARDEN that telephone service was
instituted to the Herman Beauty Salon, 3469 Broadway,
New York City, in February, 1940, and that the bills
are sent to HERMAN WEINHARDT whose residence is 24 Ma jor
Applebys Road, Ardsley, New York. .

On August 9, 1957, at the New York County Clerk's
Office, New York City, the business certificate for Tete's
Beauty Salon was checked by SA RICHARD T, HRADSKY, The -
business certificate was filed on March 14, 1957, and
. certified that MARIA THERESA BETANCOURT, 640 Riverside
Drive, New York, New York, was conducting and transacting
business at 34466 Broadway, New York City, under the name
of Tete's Beauty Salon; that BETANCOURT did not succeed in
another pbusiness, using this name previously. The businesas
certitricate was notarized by AURORA CARDONA, Notary Public,
New York State number 31-0562800, and bore an ink notation




-~ NY 100-37158 - ~ .- M—T A L A 4
of MELVIN E. CARDONA, 200 West 96th Street, New York City.
: : On July 3, 1957, at the business office of
the New York Telephone Company, 140 West Street, New
York City, telephone directories for Manhattan, 1952-
1955, were checked by SA RICHARD T. HRADSKY for a listing
of a Beauty shop under HELEN SOBELL'S name. The only
similar spelling noted was a listing for Helene Sobel
Beauty Salon, 602 West 145th Street, New York City,
telephone number AUdubon 3-9884, and a HELENE SOEEL
residing at 601 West 1l4lst Street, New York City,.

telephone number AUdubon 3-4773. No listings were noted
under the spelling of HELEN SOBELL.

. T-3 advised on July 15, 1957, that an undatéd
report on record reflected that Miss HELENE SOBEL was
the owner of the Helene Sobel Beauty Parlor, 602 West
145th Street, New York City, which shop was also known
as Helen and Ida Beauty Shop in 1945, No additional
reports have been written by T-3 on this business since
July 16, 1945,

: EDWARD L. BRAUNE, Agent, New York Telephone
Company, 140 West Street, New York City, advised SA ROBERT
D. WARDEN on July 22, 1957, that business service to the ..
Helene Sobel Beauty Salon, 602 West 145th Street, New -
York City, was instituted on September 28, 1939; that the

— owner of the Salon was HLENE SOBEL and bills have been
" sent to the Salon as no resldence address was given at
the time service was connected.

BRAUNE further advised that AUdubon 3-4773 was
listed to HELEN SOBEL, 612 West 144th Street, New York .
City, with an additional l1listing for LEAH SOBEL, residential
service to this number being instituted on January 5, 1940,

- - " . HELENE SOEEL'S occupatioh was 1isted as Beautician
. with a note that she had moved from 601 West 1l4lst Street,.

-8 -
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New York C:Lty, on November 29, 1956 A reference was
furnished as Manufacturers Tmat Company, l44th Street and
Broadm, New York City.

‘On August 6, 1957, records of the Credit Bureau
of Greater New York were checked by SA PAUL A, ROWIANDS
and no record was found for any of the above named beauty
salons or for HELENE SOBEL, HeleneSobel Beauty Shop;
BRETUHILDA OTERO, Carmelitas Beauty Shop; EDUARDO i
"STASZESKI, Carmelitas Beauty Shop; HERHAN WEINHARDI‘, '
Herman's Beauty Salon,. o

- Indices of the New York m.vision were checked

- on all the above beauty salon names and no references were
located. New York Division indices were checked on the

. mapes JOSEPHINE FALSMAN, CESARIO and LAURA NUNEZ, ANGELICA
BERDECIA, EDUARDO STASZESKI, BRETUHILDA OTERO, HERMAN
WEINHARDT, and MARIA TERESA BE‘I'ANCOURT, and no references
were located.

References were located to the name JOSE RAMOS
and are being checked to determine if any are identical
with JOSE E, RAMOS of the Majestic Beauty Parlor.

On July 31, 1957, EDWARD L. BRAUNE, Agent,
New York Telephone Company, New York City, was requested
to check the records on Tete's Beauty Salon, 3466 Broadway,
New York City. .
Inquiry of 30 Charlton Street
- New York City -

B On August 2, 1957, Mrs, HERBERT NICHOIAS, who 18 -
the wife of the superintendent of the building at 30 Charlton
Street, New York City, where HEIEN SCBELL resides, advised
SA RICHARD T. HRADSKY that the records she maintains in the
building office did not reflect the date that HELEN SOBELL
moved into this building. A




NY 100-4375.'58 - ‘. R [

. lra NICHOLAS stated that she could obtain this =
information from the Managing Corporation'’s 9ffice, the .
30 Charlton Street Corporation, 44 Court Street, Brooklyn,
New York, by telephone. Mrs, NICHOILAS telephonically
contacted a girl in the MManaging Corporationts Office whom
she addressed as PHYLLIS who advised that her records
reflected that the first month's rent paid on apartment 5B,
when rented by HELEN SOBELL,was December 1, 1956. The
specific dated that HELEN SOBELL noved into the apartment
was not of record. _ ;

Mrs. NICHOLAS advised that she and her husband
assumed the Jjob of superintendent of the 30 Charlton Street,
New York City, property, in May, 1957, and that she had

'no-knowledge of the activities of HELEN SOBELL.

- P - ’ —
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*’ Qjﬁce Memomndum UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

@Ay

10 . DIRECTOR, FBI (101-2483) DATE: 8/28/57
' SECNET
FROM )9/%3 SAC, NEW YORK (100-37158)
9  SUBJECT: ’Ba;rgNOSOBELL, was 4 -

Re report of SA RICHARD P. HRADSKY, dated at
at New York, and tani memorandum captioned "MORTON SOBELL", was

enclosed herewdth. ﬂ/&
INPORMANTS Clasered Mﬂj&t’ '

De Ll al; 0

Date of Activity 2.3/ 87
And/or Agent to File Number
Identity Description of Date Whom Where
of Source Information “Received PFurnished Located
T-1 100-37158-1834

CIA
' Uan‘fxington, D.C.

T-2 Information rersiskéd 100-37158-1834
REINO BAYHANEN on 5/6 bl

\s)
¢o ™m e B eet .
Information eoncerning 100-37158-1838
& )
Information concerning SA LAWRENCE 65-17259-4
suvbject, 5/13/57 MC WILLIAMS
SA EDWARD H.
MOODYY
Q Information concerningi =LV SA EDWARD H,100-37158-1837
/ subject, 5/17/57 ~ MOODY

\ SA EDWARD J,
@+ Burean (101-2483) gm«&/) (RM) o,
New York 1(100-37158) . /

RTH:el E , /I/
(5) é 0 &




© NY 100-37158 © . ;
_Date of Activity < S ~
. R - And/or .. "7+ Agent to - File Number
Identity Description of B Date - Whom = - Where
of Source Information - Received FMumished = Iocated

-3 SA WILLIAM Instant report

D, HOSKINS

N2
b1D>

Careful considemtion has been givnn to each
source concealed and T symbols have been utilized in the .
report only in those instances where the identities of the
sources must be concealed.

ADMINISTRATIVE

i This report is being classified "Confidential"”
inasmuch as it contains natiggal defense information teoyond
the unauthorized disclosure/which would not be in the best
interests of the United States. » :

No dissemination or mformtion received from
REINO HAYHANEN. 18 to be made outside the Bureau unless
it is spepcifically authorized by the Bureau,
LEADS

NEW YORK

'i A’c New York, New York L

. wWill check NYC voting records ror 1dent1ry1n3
information on HELENE and LEAH SOBEL who resided at
601 West 141st Street, NYC, until 11/29/56, check indides -
and compare with identifying informatinn on subject's wife.




KY 1oo-37i58 :

At New York, New York (COnt'dl

w111 report results of requested check on Tete's
Beauty Salon, 3466 Broadway, New York City, made of
EDWARD L., BRAUNE, Agent, New York Telephone coupany.
on 7/81/57.

will report the results of the re-interview i
of REINO HAYHANEN .a8 instructed by the Bureau in referenced’
Bureau letter dated 6/4/57.

Will check references noted in NY Division
indices on JOSE RAMOS to ascertain if any are identical
with JOSE E, RAMOS of the Majestic Beauty Salon.

'REFERENCES: Report of SA JOSEPH A. BENDER dated 6/10/57, at NY,
and Bureau letter to NY dated 6/4/57.

e,
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United States Department of Justice
Federal Burean of Inuestigation

New York, New York
August ~2‘é, 1957

Re: Hoi'tdn Sobell, was,

Informant T-3 utilized ip the report of Special
Agent Richard T, Hradsky, dated 8/28/57,

at New York,
has furnished reliable information in the past.

This i8 loaned to you by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, and neither it nor its contents are to be

distributed outs:lde_the agency to which loaned.

AGENSY 2B/ AHiA
REQ. R7% &7/

DAIE (0iH. Quke 5 ?

HUW rc-a':}:'&}éﬁ
By _JPL (fr

_m:r A TION CONTAINED
o, TEECRIATION CONTED

AT A ‘m
RSN )5 Uir e 2
DATE J,I_Z}'lﬂ—“ i

COPIES DEsmoYﬁﬁ / Y, / -2483-/39 7

81 AR 1C 135}
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Asststant Attorney General August 29, 1957
Filliom F, Tompkins .

Dtroator, III.,~€
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: : Thcro are cttached Photoatato Qf two pogec of thc
”ﬁbttonal Guardian” for August 8, ‘1957, TYou ,ptll note
. these pages include an advertisement by the "Commitiee to - ,
; ~Secure Juatice for Morson Sodell” which appeals for names .
wihkato de tncluded ta an Amtous Curige brief to be filed on :
. Sodell'’s behalf, It 38 to be noted that Sobell etrrently -
Aas an appeal pending to the United States Supreme Court -
. Srom the Jouar court dcciatona denying his motions for a
new trial, = - TR e s S

faed LT ‘w--';'i-e- ‘,'-.' P

A The Committee on Un-American Activities report
entttled "Trial by Treason; the National Committece to
Secure Justice for the &caenuerga and Lorton Sobell"
dated Auguat 85, 1956, on page 12 describes the "Natioaal
Guardian” as fbllovc: ”Eetabltahcd by the 4American Labdor
Party In 1947 as a 'progressive’ weekly...Although it
-dentes Raving any afftliation with the Communist Party o

" ."$t has mantfested ttself from the bcgtuntng as c vtrtual R
Qﬁf‘ﬁidl propagcndo cnn ‘of Soviet Buaota.- : -
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e Beltcitor General

" Me above ts furnished to you for your
tnforaation,

NOTE: This i8 classified Copfi L L er to ‘
protect the informant who is b
who has furnished info re this matier in € past.

Morton Sobell was convicted along with Julius and Ethel
Rosenberg of conspiracy to commit espionage and § is now
serving 30 yrs. in Alcatraz Prison. He made motions

' Sfor a new trial 5-25-56 which were denied by the

District Court and this denial was affirmed by the Circuit

*Court of Appeals. On 9-9- he filed petitions for

writs of certiorari before the United States Supreme
Court from the lower court decision.

Statement from Merican Departiment of Interior refers
to an exhibit filed with defendant's petition for a
writ of certiorari which is a letter from the Dept.
of Interior of the Merican Government mailed 3-14-57
which states that the files of that Dept. contain no
record indicating that Sobell was ordered £ ezpelled
Sfrom Merico., This dept. handles such matters.
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Ojﬁce Memomndum UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

To : Mr. Tolson DATE: 9/16/ ,57 -
mox : L. B. Nicm,\ 20y Mé
. - Mlmon
p ﬁ‘ Mohr
susjecr:  MORTON SOBELL , Rosen -
B Ut Y S | T
Irving Kaufman 18 very much upset over the new motion Nease
filed by the)Committee to Free Sobell in the Supreme Court where for the foje- Room —
first timeg/hey raise the 18sué the trial judge committed prejudicial error Gandy
in allo the prosecution to impeach the credibilityxdf a defendant by
showing the defendant claimed the privilege of the 5th Amendment before a
grand jury. Sobell, of course, didn't take the stand and Rosenberg did. Sobell )
is claiming that the action of permitting cross examination of Ethel Rosenberg, !
who took the 5th Amendment, had had an adverse affect upon him. 9
Irving is afraid that the court might upset the case unless the %
Department vigorously defends it.- - I note that a memorandum was sent to Tompkins \.Q
on September 12 merely asking that the Bureau be kept advised. I wonder if it \
wouldn't be a good idea to send a memorandum to the Attorney General pointing \
- out Judge Kaufman's concern and the urgent necessity for a vigorous presentation
i on the part of the Government. . R
. R =
LBN:hpf \/ X. .
@ o A
[
cc - Mr. Boardman wu : £
Mr. Belmont Q"” N
. : ¢
R 4 /o1-248 3 7/,;;;
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/% wompec: ORTON SOBELL, was. KuTWORUTIRC o4

o~ -
Oﬂice Memc;mdum UNITED ST. _}s GOVERNMENT

cc - Belmont
' A, H. Belmont Branigan DATB:September 11, 1957

¥.C. Sullivan
ols
74’7 ghios=

. ‘ Nichols
no_u : ¥, A. Branig Lee
~ ESPIONAGE - B - v REIN v ;v .;__ :':::.
Subject convicted 1951 wit ulius and Ethel Rosenberg ::mmd___

~for espionage conspzracy and sentenced to'30 years. On 5-8-88 Tele. Room —

Holloman —

he filed motion- in District Court, Southern District of New YoTXGady
SJor a new trial and a hearing claiming illegal deportation from
Mexico and that the United States Government was aware of thisg fact; :
therefore, the Government knowingly used perjured testimony tv the effect
that he was legally deported. On 5-25-56 he filed a second motion for a
new trial and a hearing claiming that since he was not legally ezrtradited
the Government _lacked jurisdiction to try him. On 6-20-56 Judge Irving

- Kaufman, . District Court, denied both motions and on 5-14-57 Circuit

Court of dppeals, Second UerUIt unanimously qﬁfzrmed the Distract o~
Court'a denial qf the subject's motions. 4
' 2 l On 9-9-57 subJect ftled petztzons,for writs qf certiorari to
the Uhited States Supreme Court from the lower court decision. He has

"also filed a new motion, namely, a motion to vacate the order of the

—

United States Supreme Court denying his petition for writ of certiorari
and reheardng (10-13 and 11-17-52) and reguesting a new trial. The

basis for %his motion is that the U.S. Supreme Court in Grunewald vs.
United States held that the trial .judge committed prejudicial error in
allowing the prosecutzon to impeach the credibility of a defendant who
had taken the stand by showing the defendant claimed the privilege
against self-incrimination before a grand jury with regard to questions
which he answered during the trial. Sobell claims that the trial court
permitted such a cross eramination of Ethel Rosenberg which was in error.
He claims such cross eramination had an adverse effect on him even

though he'dtd not take the stand because Elthel Rosenberg was a codeferndant
and zf the .Jury discounted her testimony, it was obviously dinding on hin.

Zhe petztzon for certzorart‘from the motion of 5-8-56 res s
the claims made in the lower courts, namely that Sebell was abducted
Sfrom Mexico by agents of the prosecutton .and ‘that the Government kn y
used perJured testzmony at the -trial in an attempt to leave the :
impression with the jury that hé was 1¢gu}ly deported Srom Mexico. is

" .refers to the testimony of INS' Inapector Jhmes'@Mggzns who introduced
_at the trial @4 manifest ogrd bearing the words: "Deported from Verico,”
"Huggins testified he made 8iuch entry. from his own observation when he

8aw Sobell. escorted to the border by a group of Merican poltce officials.
Sobell claims that the District Coyrt ignored his claims and decided
there was no wzlqul perjury without 6holding a h&€aring which vzolates t‘E;

Enclosure M?/lb 97 1{ . /77"_5

TPL:jdb SEP 18 1357
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’ “Temsrandum to Mr, £zont ’\‘j
Re: lorton Sobell
- 101-2483

. due process clause of the Constitution. Sobell claims that while
S the -abduction was done by Mexican police ofjicials, they were acting
as agents of the United States Government. The District Court held
that regardless of the words used, Sobell was, in fact, expelled from
Mexrico and the testimony of Huggins was used to show that Sobell did
not return to the United States voluntarily, not that he was legally
deported.

The petztzon,}ﬁgn his motion qf 5-25-56 claims that since
Sobell was not extradited in accordance with the United States - Xexrico
Extradition Treaty, the court did not have the jurisdiction to try hinm
Sfor the offense. He contends such a treaty creates an ezxclusive means
of obtaining custody over fugitives in Mexico. He also contends this
Question was not previously litigated in his moition in arrest oj judg-
ment made on the day of sentencing since that motion dealt only with
personal jurisdiction and not total jurisdiction. Judge Kaufman im his
opinion of 6-20-56 held that this current motion is the same as the
motion in arrest of Judgment and there i8 no question of the jurisdiction
.lof his court to try a person for espionage comniited in the Southern
District of New York. Kaufman also held that treaties are made between
nations and individuals have no rights under these treaties unless a
specific treaty is used for extradition. For example, if a man is
extradited for one crime and tried for another then he would have rights
under'th%,treaty.

) Ibﬁji Copies of the above-mentioned petitions and motion were
7t

borrowed by WFO from the clerk of the United States Supreme Court and
have been returned.

-

There is attached for your approval a letter to Solicitor .Gen.
requesting that the Bureau be kept advised qf developments in this case
and furnished with a copy of the Government's reply to these petitions
and motion.
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Jn the §1iyreimt 'd{nurt of the Wnited States

OcroBer TERM, 1954

No. 764 .
EvEREST MELVIN HuprMaN, A/k/A MELVIN E. HUPMAN,
' PETITIONER
) A
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

ON MOTION TO VACATE THE ORDERS OF THIS COURT DENYING
PETITIONS FOR REHEARING AND FOR A WRIT OF CERTIORARI,
AND POR ORDERS GRANTING THE PETITIONS AND ANEW TRIAL

MEMORANDUM FOR THE UNITED STATES IN OPPOSITION

On January 15, 1954, petitioner was convicted in
the United States Distriect Court for the Southern
District of Ohio on both counts of a two-count indict-
ment charging him with having falsely stated, in an
affidavit filed with the National Labor Relations
Board, that he was not a member of (count 1) or
affiliated with (ecount 2) the Communist Party, in
violation of 18 U. S. C. 1001 and §9 (h) of the Na-
tional Labor Relations Act, as amended by the Labor
Management Relations Act of 1947 (29 U. S. C.
159 (h)). He was sentenced to five years’ imprison-
ment on each count, the terms to run concurrently, and
to pay a fine of $5,000 (Pet. 1). On February 7, 1955,

(1)
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the judgment of conviction was affirmed by the Court of
Appeals for the Sixth Circuit (219 F. 2d 243). A
petition for a writ of certiorari to review this judg-
ment (No. 764, Oct. Term, 1954) was denied by this
Court on June 6, 1955 (349 U. 8. 953), and a petition
for ‘rehearing was denied on October 10, 1955 (350
U. S. 855). Since June 1955, petitioner has been
incarcerated in the United States Penitentiary at
Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, serving his senfence.

On June 17, 1957, more than two years after the
denial of certiorari, and some 20 months after the de-
nial of the petition for rehearing, petitioner filed the
present motion, in which he seeks to have the Court
vacate those orders, grant certiorari, reverse his con-
viction, and order a new trial, on the authority of its

decision in Jencks v. United States, No. 23, Oct. Term,

1956, decided June 3, 1957. ‘

The motion, we submit, should be denied. It is, in
effect, a ‘“‘consecutive’’ petition for rehearing of a
denial of certiorari, filed long out of time and, under

@ Rules 58 (2) and (4) of the Rules of this Court, such

petitions “will not be received.”” It is true that the
Court has said that “the interest in finality of litiga-
tion must yield where the interests of justice would
make unfair the strict application of our rules,”
United States v. Ohio Power Co., 353 U. S. 98, 99,
but the interests of justice in this case strongly mili-

1An application for bail pending disposition of the motion
was denied by Mr. Justice Burton on June 22, 1957; A renewed
application for bail was denied by Mr. Justice Brennan on July
8, 1957.

3

tate -in favor of adherepce to, rather than. any ex-
traordinary departure from, the rules of the Court.
In his much-belated motion to vacate and reverse,
petitioner seeks this relief on the authority of the
Jencks. decision.  However, the fact is that neither
the petition for. certiorari nor the original (timely)
petition for rehearing raised the production-of-docu-
ments question which was the basis for that decision.
In the petition for certiorari itself, the point w3s
presented neither in the “Questions Presented for
Review’’ (pp. 2-3) nor in the “Reasons for Granting
the Writ” (pp. 23-52),' and the original petition for
rehearing was completely silent on the matter. Under
Rule 23 (1) -(¢) of the Rules of this Court, “Only the
questions set forth in the petition or fairly comprised
therein will be considered by the court.”* Here, the

* We assume, arguendo, that the Court has the power to grant
rehearing of a judgment or order entered, as here, two full
years and two full terms prior to the date of the application
for such rehearing (see however, Wiener, 7he Supreme Court’s
New Rules, 68 Harv. L. Rev. 20, 84-86 (1954) ; Stern and Gress-
man, Supreme Court Practice (2d ed., 1954), pp. 347-351; ct.
United States: v. Ohio Power Co., 353 U, S. 98, 99-111 (dis-
senting opinion)).

*The petition for certiorari, at pp. 20-21, under the heading
“Summary Statement of the Matter Involved”, did refer to peti-
tioner’s requests for production of documents at the trial, but it
did not seek review of the orders denying these requests, or
even assign as error the making of the orders.

“See also Rule 15 (1) (¢) (1), providing similarly with
respect to jurisdictional statements. In Alberts v. California,
No. 61, Oct. Term, 1956, decided June 24, 1957, the Court re-
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issue now urged by petitioner was not only not “fairly
comprised” within the questions presented by the peti-
tion for certiorari; it was not mentioned or referred
to in those questions.

Petitioner does not claim that any unusual circum-
stances such as fraud or mutual mistake of fact are
present in his case. His claim is limited to the con-

ntion that he “would obtain a reversal of the con-

tion and a new trial if the case were before an
appellate court today.”” Motion, p. 3° Petitioner
thus asserts merely that, almost two years after this
Court twice declined to review his case, a conflict has
developed between a holding of this Court and an
earlier ruling of the trial judge below. Surely, if
such a showing, without more, would constitute a basis
for departing from this Court’s rules and the prinei-
ple that “litigation must at some definite point be
brought to an end” (Federal Trade Commission v.
Minneapolis-Honeywell Regulator Co., 344 U. S. 206,
213; cf. United States v. Ohio Power Co., 353 U. S. 98,
.2 (dissenting opinion)), both the rules and the prin-

fused to consider a contention, belatedly advanced in that case,
on the ground that the issue was “not before us because not
fairly comprised within the questions presented” (slip opinion,
p- 12, fn. 27).

$Of course, if petitioner were now claiming that there had
been such a denial or infringement of his constitutional rights
as to render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack, his
proper remedy would be in a proceeding instituted in the dis-
trict court under 28 U. 8.'C. 2255. We do not concede that the
facts alleged in petitioner’s motion form a sufficient basis for
collateral attack. Our point is that Congress has provided an
adequate remedy where the rules of finality would otherwise
continue in custody one whose constitutional rlghts had been
violated.

5

ciple would be sapped of all vitality. See Sunal V.
Large,332U. 8. 174,182.°

The alternative ground assigned by petitioner (pp. 3,
10-12) is equally misconceived. Petitioner points out
that in the Jencks case three members'of the Court
were of the view that the instructions to the jury asto
the meaning of ‘‘membership’’ in and “affiliation’’
with the Communist Party were deficient, and that
similar instructions were given in petitioner’s case.
In view of the fact, however, that Jencks did not de-"
cide the issue as to the adequacy of these instructions
(a majority of the Court having found it unnecessary
to reach it), the facts relied on by petitioner with
respect to the alternative ground of his motion are,
we submit, far from sufficient to warrant the Court
in taking the unprecedented action which petitioner
urges, viz., vacating an order of denial of certiorari
entered two full years and two terms ago.

Petitioner’s reliance (Motion, p. 2) on United
States v. Ohto Power Co., 350 U. S. 862, 350 U. S. 919,
351 U. S. 958, 351 U. S. 980, 353 U. S. 98, is, we
submit, entirely misplaced. There, the Court, on
October 17, 1955, denied a petition for a writ of cer-
tiorari, filed by the Government, to review a judgment
of the Court of Claims (350 U. S. 862). In a petition
for rehearing filed in November 1955, the Government

¢ A claimed development of a conflict was urged as a basis
for granting rehearing out of time in thirteen cases since the
adoption of Rule 68 in 1954, and such relief was in each case
denied. See cases collected in United States v. Ohio Power
Co., 353 U. S. 98, 108-109 (dissenting opinion). Cf. Item Com-
pany v. N. L. R. B., No. 450, Oct. Term, 1956, certiorari denied,
852 U. S. 917.
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called attention to the National Lead case, then pend-
ing before the Second Circuit and involving the
identical issue presented in Ohto Power, and requested
the Court to defer further consideration of the case
pending the Second Circuit’s decision in National
Lead. The petition for rehearing requested that, in
the interests of expeditious determination of the issue
well as protection of the revenue, the Court keep
case open to await the outcome of National Lead.

On December 5, 1955, this timely petition for re-
hearing was denied (350 U. S. 919). Subsequently,
in the same term, the Government filed a motion for
leave to file a second (untimely) petition for rehear-
ing, based on the intervening conflict of decisions,
which motion was denied on May 28, 1956 (351 U. S.
958). On June 11, 1956, still in the same term, the
Court, sua sponte, vacated its order of December 5,
1955, denying the original (timely) petition for re-
hearing, and ordered that the petition be continued as
the Government had requested (351 U. S. 980). There-
‘r, on April 1, 1957, at the next term, the petition for
rehearing was granted, the order denying certiorari
vacated and certiorari granted, and the judgment of the
Court of Claims reversed, on the authority of the
intervening resolution of the issue by this Court (353
U. S. 98). Thus, in Ohio Power, unlike the case
at bar, the continuation of the matter on the ground
of a potential conflict was sought by the Government’s
first (timely) petition and was, in effect, granted by
the Court’s order of June 11, 1956, supra, within the
same term of Court. Furthermore, the petition for
certiorari in Ohso Power had squarely presented the

7

precise issue with respect to which rehearing was
sought. The Ohio Power case is thus totally dis-
tinguishable from the instant case and constitutes no
precedent for the extraordinary action which peti-
tioner asks the Court to take here. )

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully sub-
mitted that petitioner’s motion should be denied.

J. LEE RANKIN,
Solscitor General.
JuLy 1957.

@. 5. SOVERNMINT PRINTING OFFICS) 1987
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Ocrom-m TEBM 1952

- .. No. 112.
MorToN S_onﬁm,; PETITIONER
. | .
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

ON MOTION TO VACATE THE ORDERS OF THIS COURT DENYING
PETITIONS FOR REHEARING AND FOR A WRIT OF CERTIORARI,
AND FOR ORDERS GRANTING THRE PETITIONS AND A NEW TRIAL

MEMORANDUM FOR THE UNITED STATES IN OPPOSITION

On April 5, 1951, petitioner, together with Julius
and Ethel Rosenberg, was convicted in the United
States District Court for the Southern Dlstnct of
New York of conspiracy to commit espionage, in vm—
lation of former 50 U. 8. C. 32 and 34 (now 18
U. 8. C. 794.) Petitioner was sentenced to thirty
years’ imprisonment. On February 25, 1952, the
judgment of conviction was affirmed by the Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit (United States v.
Rosenberg, 195 F. 2d 583). A petition for a writ of
certiorari to review petitioner’s conviction (No. 112,
Oct. Term, 1952)* was denied by this Court on Oec-

1 A separate petition (No. 111) was filed on behalf of Julius
and Ethel Rosenberg. See fn. 5, infra.

@)
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tober 13, 1952 (344 U. S. 838), and a petition for a
rehearing was denied on November 17, 1952 (344
U. 8. 889).

(For a partial list of subsequent judicial proceed-
ings, see record on appeal, Pets. Nos. 440 and 441,
this Term, pp. 95-97. Apart from the two motions
which are involved in petitions Nos. 440 and 441,
“The record shows that in one form or another the
case was before the United States Court of Appeals
six times, always concluding with an affirmance, and
before the United States Supreme Court six times on
applications of one sort or another, always ending with
the conviction remaining undisturbed, and this tally
-does not include the numerous proceedings at the Dis-
trict Court level and the various applications to other
judges of the District Court”. United States v. Sobell,
142 F. Supp. 515, 518.)

On September 9, 1957—five terms and nearly five

‘full years after the denial by this Court of the afore-
mentioned petitions for certiorari and rehearing—
petitioner filed the present motion, in which he seeks
to have the Court vacate those orders, grant certiorari,
-reverse his conviction, and order a new trial, on the
ground that doubt has been cast on the propriety of
a trial ruling, made in accordance with what was then
concededly the governing law in the Second Circuit
(see Motion, p. 12, 1st footnote), permitting a line of
cross-examination of one of his co-defendants. Pe-
titioner predicates his motion on this Qourt’s decision
in Grunewald v. United States, 353 U. S. 391, de-
cided May 27, 1957. The particular aspect of that
-decision upon which petitioner relies is its holding

e ——

3
that, where a defendant at & criminal trial had taken

the witness stand in his own defense and on direct

examination answered a series of questions in a man-
ner consistent with inpocence, it was error, in the par-
ticular circumstances of that case, to permit the Gav-
ernment, on cross-examination, to adduce the fact
that the witness had previously, in testifying before
the grand jury, declined to answer the same ques-
tions on the ground that his answers might have
tended to incriminate him (353 U. S. at 415424).%
The motion, we submit, should be denied. It is
nothing more than an attempt to obtain direct review
of a judgment which, under all the principles of just
and orderly legal procedure, has long since attained
finality. Moreover, as we shall show, petitioner is in
error when he states (Motion, p. 8) that, on the merits,
this case is ‘‘unquestionably governed by Grunewald.”
1. The motion is, in effect, a “consecutive’’ petition
for rehearing of a denial of certiorari, filed long qut
of time and, under Rule 58 (2) and (4) of the Rules
of this Court, such petitions “will not be received."’
See our Memorandum in Opposition to the Motion to
Vacate in Hupman v. United States, No. 764, Octs
Term, 1954, filed June 17, 1957, and presently pending
before this Court. The present motion is, in fact, so
gimilar to the Hupman motion that what we have said
" 3The concurring opinion of Mr. Justice Black, in which the
Chief Justice, Mr. Justice Douglas, and Mr. Justice Brennan
joined, indicated that, in the opinion of those Justices, the re-
gult reached should not have been predicated “on the special
circumstances of” that case. They were of the view that, as a

general rule, such cross-examination is prejudicial error as to
the person wha asserts the privilege (at 426-426). .
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in our Memorandum in Opposition to that motion has
equal—indeed, a fortiors (see fn. 4 below)—applica-
bility here.! Here, as there, the motion was filed long
- out of time.* And here, as there, the question which
was decided in the supervening decision of this Court,
on the basis of which relief is sought (here Grunewald,
there Jencks v. United States, 353 U. S. 657), was not
raised either in the petition for certiorari or in the
t'ginal (timely) petition for rehearing.! Accord-

_*The only point in our Hupman Memorandum in Opposition
which has no present relevance is the paragraph (on p. 5) in
which we reply to the “alternative ground” assigned by Hupman
for the extraordinary action which he asks the Court to take in
his case.

¢ The Hupman motion was filed two years after the denial of
. certiorari (20 months after the denial of the petition for rehear-
ing). The instant motion was filed nearly five years after the
denial of certiorari (four years and ten months after the denial
of the petition for rehearing). Our Hupman memorandum sets
forth (at pp. 5-7) why, in our judgment, Hupman’s reliance on
United States v. Ohio Power Co., 350 U. S. 862, 350 U. S. 919,
851 U. S. 958, 851 U. S. 980, 353 U. S. 98, is “entirely misplaced.”
What we there say thus applies, a fortiori, to the instant case, in
ich petitioner likewise relies on Ohio Power (Motion, pp. 2,11).
f Petitioner concedes that neither his appeal to the Court of
ppeals nor his petition for a writ of certiorari presented “the
precise question disposed of in Grunewald” (Motion, pp. 11, 12).
Nor is there basis for what appears to be a suggestion on peti-
tioner’s part (idid.) that the Grunewald question might be
deemed, by a loose reading of one of the “Questions Presented”
(“2(c)™) in the petition, to have been raised in that question.
Question Presented No. “2 (c)” was whether petitioner “was
deprived of a fair trial” by virtue of alleged misconduct on the
part of “the trial judge and prosecutor, in particular of a consis-
tent and repeated pattern of the questioning of witnesses by the
trial judge evidencing belief in the government’s witnesses, and
disbelief in the defense,” which, it was said, “was calculated to
implant in the jury the court’s belief in petitioner’s guilt” (Peti-
tion for certiorari, No. 112, Oct. Term, 1952, pp. 16-17). At the

———
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ingly, we will not repeat what we said in our Hupman
memorandum, but respectfully refer the Court to the
reasons, there set forth, why the Court should not

place in the body of the petition (under “Reasons for Granting
the Writ”) corresponding to this “Question Presented,” petitioner
merely adopted by reference what the Rosenbergs’ petition for
certiorari said on the subject of “the claim of prejudicial miscon-
duct of the trial judge” (id. at 44). He referred, in particular
(see ibid.), to “the appendix to [the Rosenbergs’] petition partic-
ularizing such conduct as well as the portion of their petition dis-
cussing it (No. 4 of ‘Questions Presented’ in that petition, dis-
cussed at pages 31-39 therein).” Nowhere in the referred-to
pages of the Rosenbergs’ petition (No. 111, Oct. Term, 1952), or
in the appendix thereto, or anywhere else therein, is there any
reference to the Grunewald issue. The very closest which the
Rosenbergs’ petition came to presenting that issue was in the next
to the last paragraph of the 38-page appendix. In that para-
graph, reference was made to the prosecuting attorney’s interro-
gation of Ethel Rosenberg with respect to her prior invocation of
privilege before the grand jury, and to the court’s “iterat[ion]”
and “reiterat[ion]” of the same subject. But not even there was it
claimed that such cross-examination was error; the only claim
was that the judge permitted it to be unduly emphasized.

(The claim of bias on the part of the trial judge has been con-
clusively rejected on the merits. However, since reference is again
made to it, it seems appropriate to note, in the context of this Mo-
tion, that the trial judge, who, as we have noted (supra, p. 2),
is conceded to have ruled in accordance with the law as it had then
been established by the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit,
did not seek to prolong or unduly emphasize this testimony, as
petitioner has alleged; in fact, the trial judge sought to curtail
it. Ses, e. g., R. 1395, where, addressing the government attor-
ney, the trial judge stated: “I think we have had enough on this
subject, Mr. Saypol, and for this particular purpose, and the
purpose for which it is limited [to impeach credibility], I don'
see anything would be added by constant questioning and more
assertion of the privilege. So I am going to ask you to go on to
another topic.” Moreover, subsequent to this cross-examination,
defense counsel specifically acknowledged the fairness of the trial
judge. (R. 1452-1453, 1588, 1603.) ) ‘
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make the extraordinary departure from its Rules
which petitioner asks.

2. Furthermore, on the merits, this case is not
“unquestionably governed by Grunewald” (Motion,
p- 8). - The relevant aspect of that case was the re-
wversal of the conviction of the defendant Halperin
(353 U. 8. at 415-424). Unlike petitioner, Halperin
had taken the witness stand in his own defense., The
‘}overnment was allowed to bring out on cross-

examination that he had pleaded his privilege against
self-incrimination before the .grand jury as to the
very questions which he answered at the trial. This
Court held that, in the particular circumstances of
that case,’ this line of cross-examination was preju-
dicial error. However, petitioner’s case is clearly
distinguishable from that of Halperin in Grunewald.
. In the first place, in Grunewald, Halperin’s convic-
tion was reversed because he had been subjected to
cross-examination concerning his prior invocation of
the privilege against self-incrimination. Here, peti-
tioner, who did not take the stand, claims that the
‘:ross-examination of a co-defendant, as to matters
which, as we show #nfrae pp. 7-8, related to him only
insofar as they were relevant to the existence of any
conspiracy at all, incidentally prejudiced him,
‘Whether one can validly claim that such cross-examina-
tion of another witness-defendant warrants the re-
versal of the conviction of a co-defendant who, like
petitioner, did not téstify, is a matter not decided by

¢ As previously noted .(see fn. 2, supra, p. 3), the concurring

Justices would have broadened the holding in that case into a
rule of general applicability.
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this Court’s deeision in Grunewald. Mr. Justice Har-
lan, writing for the majority (353 U. 8. at 415, fa.

.26), states that Grunewald and Bolich, Halperin's’

co-defendants, also contended, on their own. behalf,

-that the cross-examination of Halperin was:a ground
for the reversal of their convictions. Since the con-

victions of Grunewald and Bolich were reversed on
other grounds, it was not necessary for the Court
to pass upon this contention.” And the concurring
opinion of Mr. Justice Black, although it would, gs
we have noted, broaden the Court’s holding beyond
the circumstances presented by the facts of the Gruns-
wald case, states that ‘‘I can think of no special oir-
cumstances that would justify use of a constitutional
privilege to discredit or convict a person who asserts
st (353 U. S. at 425; emphasis added). Suffice it to
say, for the purposes of this motion, that the grounds

.set forth in the motion would, if timely raised, present

a question not ‘‘unquestionably decided” but clearly
not passed upon by the Grunewald decision.

Moreover, in determining whether anyone other
than the defendant who asserted the privilege may
claim prejudice because of such cross-examination, an
obviously relevant factor would be the extent to which

-that cross-examination tended to implicate the person

claiming prejudice. Here, none of the evidence which

‘directly related to petitioner (¢. e., the testimony of

Max Elitcher and that related to flight; briefly sum-

T Petitioner also relies on the decision of the Tenth Circuit
in Travis v. United States, No. 5379 (see Motion, p. 11, note).
There, the fact that the defendant had invoked the privilege
was brought to the attention of the jurors in the cross-examina-
tion of character witnesses. This case, therefore, also fails to
present the question whether anyone other than the defendant
who asserted the privilege may validly claim prejudice,
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marized in our Brief in Opposition to Pets. Nos. 440
.and 441, filed herewith, pp. 6-10) was touched upon
in the cross-examination of Ethel Rosenberg. Indeed,
‘Sobell’s name was not even mentioned nor was he
‘otherwise referred to at any time in this cross-ex-
amination. At most, the cross-examination of Ethel
Rosenberg tended to show participation by the Rosen-
bergs in a conspiracy, but it did not in any way relate
‘to whether Sobell was a member of that conspiracy.
By contrast, in Grunewald, the cross-examination of
Halperin was designed, not only to show the general
existence of a conspiracy, but Halperin’s direct partic-
ipation in that conspiracy. Thus, in short, not only
was petitioner not the person shown to have invoked
the privilege, but the cross-examination of the witness
who had previously invoked the privilege did not even
relate to petitioner’s participation in the erime.*

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully sub-
mitted that petitioner’s motion should be denied.

J. LEE RANKIN,

Solicitor General.
"~ OcToBER 1957.

$'We have, of course limited ourselves herein to the question
" of possible prejudice to the petitioner, rather than his co-de-
fendants, because, on the merits, that would be the sole ques-
tion raised by the motion. Cf. Delli Paoli v. United States, 852
U. S. 232, 239-243 (introduction of confession, proper as to one
defendant, not prejudicial error as to co-defendant because of
the circumstances of the case). Although the question of the
propriety of the cross-examination as it related to petitioner’s
co-defendants is not therefore necessarily involved in this
motion, we do not wish our silence on this point to be in any
way construed as acquiescence in the proposition that, in the
circumstances of this case (different from those of Grunewald),
that cross-examination was improper.
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Jn the Supreme Gourt of the Hnited States

OcroBer TERM, 1957

Nos. 440 and 441

MORTON SOBELL, PETITIONER
v.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

ON PETITIONS FOR WRITS OF OCERTIORARI TO UNITED BTATES
COURT OF APPEALS FOR THR BEOOND CIROUIT

BRIEF FOR THE UNRITED STATES IN OFPOSITION

OPINIONS BELOW

~ The opinion of the District Court® (A. 197-228)‘ 18
reported at 142 F. Supp. 515. The opinion of the
Court of Appeals (Pet., No. 440, App. 2—12) m Te-
ported at 244 F. 2d 520.

3The District Court decided both of the two 28 U. S. C.
2255 motions herein involved in a single opinion. The Court of
Appeals, similarly, disposed of both appeals in a single opinion
and we respond to both petitions in this single brief in
opposition.

*In conformance with the method adopted by petitioner, we
shall designate with the letter “A.” references to the current
record on appeal, and with the letter “R.” references to the
printed record .of the original trial (Nos. 111 and 112, O. T.
1952). The petitions for writs of certiorari will be referred
to as “Pet., No. 440” and “Pet., No. 441,” and the appendices to
these petitions as “Pet., No. 440, App.” and “Pet., No. 441, App.”

@)
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JURISDICTION

The judgment of the Court of Appeals (Pet., No.
440, App. 1) was entered May 14, 1957. A petition
for rehearing was denied on June 3, 1957. On August
28, 1957, Mr. Justice Harlan extended the time for
filing petitions for writs of certiorari to and including
September 10, 1957. The petitions were filed on
September 9, 1957. The jurisdiction of this Court is

.invoked under 28 U. 8. C. 1254 (1).

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. The question presented in No. 440 is whether, on
the basis of the allegations of petitioner’s motion
under 28 U. 8. C. 2255, charging that his conviction of
conspiracy to commit espionage was obtained through
the knowing use of perjured testimony, he was en-
titled to a hearing for the introduction of testimony,

or whether ‘‘the files and records of the case con- .

clusively show’’ that he ‘‘is entitled to no relief.”

- 2. The question presented in No. 441 is whether, on
the basis of the allegations of another motion filed by
petitioner under 28 U. 8. C. 2255, charging that he
was expelled from Mexico by the Mexican Secret Po-
lice at the instance and through the collusion of agents
of the United States government, by means which
were allegedly in violation of a treaty of extradition
between the United States and Mexico, and by which
means he allegedly came within the jurisdiction of the
trial court, petitioner was entitled to a hearing to
inquire into the truth of these charges with a view to
determining whether the trial court had jurisdiction

3
to try him, or whether “‘the files and records of the

case conclusively show’’ that he ‘‘is entitled to no

relief.”’
STATUTE INVOLVED

Title 28, U. 8. C., Section 2255 proyides:

§ 2255. Federal custody; remedies on motion
© altacking sentence.

A prisoner in custody under sentence of a court
established by Aect of Congress claiming the
right to be released upon the ground that the
sentence was imposed in violation of the Con-
stitution or laws of the United States, or that
the court was without jurisdiction to impose
such sentence, or that the sentence was in

. excess of the maximum authorized by law, or is
otherwise subject to collateral attack, may move
the court which imposed the sentence to vacate,
set aside or correct the sentence.

A motion for such relief may be made at any
time.

Unless the motion and the files and records of
the case conclusively show that the prisoner is
entitled to no relief, the court shall cause notice
thereof to be served upon the United States at-
torney, grant a prompt hearing thereon, deter-
mine the issues and make findings of fact and
conclusions of law with respect thereto. If the
court finds that the judgment was rendered
without jurisdiction, or that the sentence im-
posed was not authorized by law or otherwise

" open to collateral attack, or that there has been
such a denial or infringement of the constitu-
tional rights of the prisoner as fo render the
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judgment vulnerable to collateral attack, the
court shall vacate and set the judgment aside
and shall discharge the prisoner or resentence
him or grant a new trial or correct the sentence

as may appear appropriate.

A court may entertain and determine such
motion without requiring the production of the
prisoner at the hearing.

. The sentencing court shall not be required to
. entertain a second or successive motion for
similar relief on behalf of the same prisoner.

An appeal may be taken to the court of ap-
peals from the order entered on the motion as
from a final judgment on application for a writ
of habeas corpus.

» ] L 4 * L

STATEMENT

On March 29, 1951, petitioner and two co-defend-
ants, Julius and Ethel Rosenberg, were found guilty
by a jury verdict, returned in the United States Dis-
trict Court for the Southern District of New York, of

nspiracy to commit espionage, in violation of former

U. 8. C. 32 and 34 (now 18 U. S. C. 794) (R. 1579).
On April 5, 1951, a motion in arrest of judgment, which
raised for the first time the question of the court’s
jurisdiction over petitioner was denied. See infra,
pp. 11-13. On April 5, 1951, petitioner was sentenced
to thirty years’ imprisonment (R. 30). His conviction
was thereafter affirmed by the Court of Appeals for
the Second Circuit in United States v. Rosenberg,
195 F. 2d 583, certiorari denied, 344 U. 8. 838.

On May 8, 1956, pursuant to 28 U. 8. C. 2255 (see
PPp. 34, supra), petitioner filed in the trial court, a mo-

b

tion (A. 840) to vacate and set aside his conviction

and sentence, alleging that the prosecution had know-

ingly used perjured testimony at his trial, made false

representations to the court, and suppressed evidence

which would have impeached testimony given against
him (A. 10). It is this motion which gave rise to the
proceedings in No. 440 On May 25, 1956, likewise
pursuant to 28 U. 8. C. 2255, petitioner filed, in the
same court, a second motion* (A. 79-87) to vacate and
set aside his conviction and sentence on the ground that
the criminal proceedings against him had, allegedly,
been instituted “in violation of the Constitution and
laws of the United States, including tnter alia the
extradiction treaty between the United States and
Mexico’’ (A. 80),* with the alleged consequence that
the United States and its courts “thereby lacked all
sovereignty and power’’ to conduct those proceedings
(A. 81). It is this motion which gave rise to the
proceedings in No. 441,

*The charge of conscious use of perjurious testimony, relat-
ing to other matters, was also the subject of one of the two
prior applications under Section 2255, in which petitioner
joined, and which were found to be without merit. United
States v. Rosenberg, 108 F. Supp. 798, 804 (S. D. N. Y.),
affirmed, 200 F. 2d 666 (C. A. 2), certiorari denied, 345 U. S.

965. For a partial list of the judicial proceedmga involving-

attempts to set aside petitioner’s conviction, see A. 95-97; see
also Memorandum for the United States in Opposition, No. 112,
0. T., 1952, filed herewith, p. 2.

‘Tlus motion was, therefore, petmoners fourth apphcat.mn
under Section 2255, see fn. 3, supra.

¢ Petitioner referred in hls petition to the “’I‘reaty on Ex-
tradition signed on February 22, 1899, at Mexico City, 81 Stat.
1818” (A. 80).
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. Affidavits in opposition to these motions were filed
by the Government (A. 41-64, 88-106), and reply
affidavits were filed by petitioner (A. 65-77, 107-110).
Thereafter, on June 20, 1956, following oral argument
of both motions (A. 111-196), the District Court
(Judge Irving R. Kaufman, who had presided at
petitioner’s trial) denied both motions (A. 197-228),
getting forth in detail, in a ‘‘well reasoned and com-
ehensive opinion’’ (Pet. No. 440, App. 4), the rea-
sons why, in the court’s judgment, ‘‘[t]he motions
and the files and records of this case show conclu-
gively that the prisoner is entitled to no relief”
(A. 228).
~ On May 14, 1957, the decision of the District Court
was unanimously affirmed by the Court of Appeals
for the Second Circuit (Pet., No. 440, App. 2-12),
~ Before considering the specific allegations of the two
Section 2255 motions which gave rise to these proceed-
ings, it will be necessary to set forth certain back-
ground facts.

‘ THE NATURE OF THE EVIDENCE ADDUCED AGAINST PETI-
’ TIONER AT THE TRIAL

- The evidence against petitioner fell into two cate-

gories. First, Max Elitcher, a close friend of peti-.

toner, testified that petitioner had taken an active
part-in the conspiracy and had attempted to get him
to reveal secret information concerning the national
defense (R. 197-263). This testimony was described
by thq trial judge, in his opinion denying the instant

7

motions, as “totally damning and convineing" (A.
214).°

The second category of evidence against petitioner
was evidence tending to indicate an intent on his part
to flee to Europe via Mexico, which was received as
indicative of consciousness of guilt. Judge Kaufman,
in his opinion denying the instant motions, sum-
marized the major part of this evidence as fo]lows
(A. 214-216) : :

¢ ¢ » Tt had been brought out previously by’
Pavid Greenglass that Julius Rosenberg, the
head of the espionage ring, had urged him and
his family to flee if the F'BI started to close in,
and had given Greenglass $4,000 to flee to
Mexico and thence to Europe via Tampico (R.'
522-537). Subsequently, it was established that
Sobell had gone to Mexico with his family in
the Spring of 1950. He had gone openly and
under his own name; however, it was shown
without contradiction that while in Mexico
Sobell traveled to both Tampico and Vera Cruz
using aliases; that he had inquired as to how
he might leave Mexico for Europe without
proper papers; that while in Tampico and Vera
Cruz he had enclosed letters to his wxfe in

¢ Elitcher “was subjected to an intensive and exhanstlve
cross-examination,” which “lasted two days and occupied 121
pages in the printed record” (A. 214; see R. 264-379, 388-394).
The jurors were specifically mstructed that if they did not be-
lieve Elitcher they were to acquit petitioner (R. 1560; A.
214).

*Judge Kaufman’s “R.” references, like ours, refer to the
printed trial record.

443467 37—3



8

Mexico City in unmarked envelopes sent to a
neighbor; and that while in Mexico he had sent
letters to his family in America, not directly,
but enclosed in envelopes which listed false
names as return addresses, and he had sent
these envelopes to a friend requesting that he
. forward the letters. These facts were brought
out by six disinterested witnesses, and the de-
fense made no attempt to cross-examine them
and even conceded the use of several of these

different aliases.
" William Danziger, an old friend of Sobell’s,
testified that he had received letters from an
M. Sowell and M. Levitov as the return ad-
dresses residing in Mexico; that he had opened
them and found a note from Sobell requesting
that he forward the enclosed letters to other
members of the Sobell family. Sobell also re-
quested Danziger to tell another relative that
Sobell could be reached under the name of M.
Sowell at a specified street address in Mexico.
Danziger was not cross-examined (R. 857-867).

Thereafter, the government called to the stand
Manuel Giner De Los Rios, a neighbor of the
Sobells in Mexico City. De Los Rios testified
that Sobell had approached him for informa-
tion as to how a person could leave Mexico
without papers, saying that he was afraid to
return to the United States because he did not
want to go back into the Army, having already
experienced one war (R. 922). It was sub-
sequently shown that Sobell had never been
in the Army, having been continually deferred
(R. 955). De Los Rios also testified that So-

9

bell had left his family and traveled to both
Tampico and Vera Cruz. He knew this be-
cause during Sobell’s absence, he had received
two unmarked envelopes bearing postmarks
from those two cities; inside each he found a
letter beginning ‘“Dear Helen’’ (the name of
Sobell’s wife), and he had turned both letters
over to Mrs. Sobell. Again there was no cross-
examination (R. 924-926).

Subsequently, Minerva Bravo Espinosa, a
clerk in a Vera Cruz optical store, testified that
Sobell had ordered a pair of glasses from her
using the name M. Sand, and defense counsel
conceded this fact (R. 927-930). Similarly,
Jose Broccado Vendrell testified that Sobell
had registered at his hotel in Vera Cruz as
Morris Sand; again this fact was conceded and
there was no cross-examination (R. 931-932).
Dora Bautista, a hotel clerk in Tampico, testa-
fied that Sobell had registered in her hotel as
Marvin Salt, and this too was conceded (R.
933-934). Glenn Dennis, an official of the
Mexican Airlines, was called to testify, and via
his testimony and defense concessions it was
established that Sobell had flown from Vera
Cruz to Tampico under the name of N. Sand,
and from Tampico to Mexico City under the
name of Morton Solt (R. 935-938).

“Not once during the trial,”” as Judge Kaufman
notes, ‘‘did the defense attempt to explain the strange
actions of this man and thus eradicate the impression
of flight and guilty consciousness thus created. In
summation defense counsel merely referred to these

\
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actions as ‘a brainstorm’ which he said was none of
anyone’s business (R. 1503-1504)"’ (A. 216-217).°

2. THE ALLEGEDLY PERJURIOUS TESTIMONY

The testimony which petitioner claims to have been
.perjurious, and the perjurious character of which he
gays the Government knew when it adduced it (see
tnfra, pp. 13-18), was that of James S. Huggins,
an immigration inspector at Laredo, Texas, to whom
petitioner was delivered on the occasion of his being
foreibly ejected from Mexico by the Mexican Secret
Police on the morning of August 18, 1950. The nature
of Huggins’ testimony and the circumstances under
which it was given are summarized in the opinion
below of Judge Kaufman as follows (A. 217):

Immediately after these ‘‘flight’’ witnesses
were called, the government attempted to intro-
duce an immigration manifest card noting

¥ Petitioner has personally admitted under oath his use of
aliases in Mexico and the making of inquiries about passage to
‘Europe and South America. In an affidavit dated September
23, 1953, filed with the Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit,
in opposition to the Government’s motion to affirm the denial
by the District Court of a previous Section 2255 motion, peti-
‘tioner stated (A. 49, 167):

¢ ¢ ¢ I left the family in the Mexico City apartment

and travelled around Mexico to Vera Cruz and Tampico, - -

even using false names and inquiring about passage to
Europe and South America for all of us.

His affidavit contmued (A. 167):

It is hard to ‘understand how I might have been allowed
to do such a stupid thing but it did not take long for me
to recognize how inept and pointless it was. Of course
I had no idea how it could be misinterpreted and how
dangerous it would turn out to be. * * *

' 11

. Sobell’s return to the United States; the card
was marked ‘‘deported from Mexico’”. The
government attempted to introduce it as a
record made in the ordinary course of business
by the Immigration Service, but upon objection,
the card was not allowed into evidence until:
the following day when James 8. Huggins, the
Immigration Inspector who had filled out the.
card, was flown to New York from Texas to,
authenticate it. He testified that the card was
made out in the regular course of his duties,
that he had obtained the information on it from
Sobell himself when Sobell was brought to the

. border, except for the information regarding:
Sobell’s “deportation’”. He explained that he -

. had made the notation based on his personal
observation that Sobell had been brought across.
the border by Mexican police. Despite re-
peated insistent questioning by defense counsel,
he never suggested that he had made the entry
because of any official information given him
by the Mexican authorities or agents. He reit-
erated that the entry was based solely upon his
observations at the time, and that he obtained

~ Sobell’s signature by telling him that all de-.
portees must sign such cards (R. 1025-1037).
[Emphasis in the original.]

8. THE MOTION IN ARREST OF JUDGMENT

Though both petitioner and his wife were well’
aware, before and during the trial, of the circum-
stances under which petitioner was .allegedly taken.
from his Mexico City apartment by Mexican Secret
Police and delivered at the border to immi-';
gration inspector Huggins and waiting agents of
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the Federal Bureau of Investigation (A. 22-24; R.
31-33), neither he nor his wife nor his attorneys made
any move, either before trial or during the trial, by
motion, testimony, or even by cross-examination of
the witness Huggins, to bring these alleged facts to
the attention of the court (A. 219-223). Petitioner
first brought these alleged facts to the court’s attention
in a motion and supporting affidavit in arrest of judg-
ment (R. 31-33, 1587-1599), filed April 4, 1951 (R.
33), six days after the jury’s verdict of guilty, and
the day prior to the imposition of sentence.” The
motion was denied (R. 1599), and the denial affirmed
on appeal (United States v. Rosenberg, 195 F. 2d
583, 602-603 (C. A. 2), certiorari denied, 344 U. 8.
838). Speaking for the Court of Appeals, Judge
Frank, after pointing out that Rule 12 (b) (2) of the

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure requires that

‘‘[d]efenses and objections based on defects in the in-
stitution of the prosecution or in the indictment or
information other than that it fails to show jurisdie-
tion in the court or to charge an offense may be
raised only by motion before trial’’ and that ‘‘[f]ail-
ure to present any such defense or objection as herein
provided constitutes a waiver thereof,” and after
noting that petitioner had made no such pre-trial

motion despite the fact that ‘‘all the information con-

* At the hearing below, in reply to the court’s query, “Why
didn’t the defense ®* * *® raise the question of lack of personal
jurisdiction if this was all true,” counsel for petitioner replied
that “that is something that would have to be asked of”
petitioner’s trial counsel (A. 134).
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tained in the post-trial affidavit was known to him
at that time’’ (195 F. 2d at 603), observed:

He preferred to take his chances on the verdict,
withholding his trump card until the trial was
over. The Federal Rules of Criminal Proce-
dure allow no such tactic. (Ibid.)

4. THE INSTANT MOTIONS

(a) The motion charging the knowing use of per-
jured testimony.—On May 8, 1956, as we have preyi-
ously noted, petitioner filed a motion under 28 U. S. C.
2255 (the motion involved in No. 440) charging that
his conviction was null and void on the grounds that,
allegedly, the prosecution had knowingly used per-
jured testimony against him at his trial, suppressed
evidence helpful to his defense, and made false repre-
sentations to the court (A. 8-40).

Briefly summarized, the motion alleged as follows:
That petitioner, his wife, and their two children, on
June 22, 1950, departed from the United States ‘‘on a
trip for Mexico” (A. 21, 23) ; that, prior to departure,
they had obtained ‘‘tourist cards’’ in their own names
from the Mexican Consulate (A. 21); that petitioner
had purchased the airplane tickets in his own name,
the manifest of the air flight bore his true name, and
on his arrival in Mexico he rented living quarters in
his true name (A. 21-22); that he ‘‘would have volun-
tarily returned to the United States, had it not been
for his unlawful abduction on August 16, 1950’
(A. 22); that on the latter date, while he and his
family were having supper in their Mexico City apart-
ment, ‘‘[t]hree Mexicans in civilian clothes, who iden-
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tified themselves as officers of the Secret Police of the
Federal District of Mexico,” after knocking and being
admitted to the apartment, seized him and accused
him of robbing a bank in Acapuleo (A. 22); that they
‘“geized and refused to return the credentials he ten-
dered to establish his identity’’ (A. 22); that he was
physically assaulted (A. 22); that he ‘‘was taken to
the offices of”’ the Federal District of Mexico, where
y was kept. under guard until early the following
rning, August 17th (A. 22); that throughout this

time *‘no legal proceedings were held, no hearing was
conducted, nor was [be] presented with any charges or.

warrant of arrest or written authority for the action
taken* (A. 23) ; that on August 17th he and the other
members of his family were placed under guard in two
aytomobiles, which proceeded northward (A. 23);
that on August 18th, after a day of continuous driving,
during which periodic stops were made, on which occa-
giong one of the guards would make a telephone call,
they arrived ip Nuevo Laredo on the Mexico-Texas
border. (A, 23) ; that on the Mexican side of the bor-

, an agent of the Federal Bureau of Investigation
‘“‘entered the automobile”” in which petitioner was
riding ‘‘and instructed the driver to continue to the
YInited - States immigration office in Laredo, Texas’
(A. 23) ;. that this agent ‘‘stated he had been waiting
for. potitioner for many hours” (A. 23); that at the

United States immigration office petitioner ‘‘was re-

mgved from the car by the FBI agent and taken be-
fore the witness Huggins. [the immigration inspector
whe:-gaye . the: allegedly - perjurious testimony (see
euprs, 0B, 10-11)] and was told to sign a card” (A.23) ;
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that he was then immediately placed in custody by
another FBI agent ** (A. 23-24) ; that his and his wife’s
baggage were examined and various objects removed
(A. 24); that “[i]n petitioner’s presence, one of
the Mexican Secret Police turned over tq the FBI the
personal documents that had been unlawfully taken
from him in Mexico City’’ (A. 24); that petitioner
informed both the arresting F'BI agent and Huggins
“of his unlawful abduction by the Mexican secret
police’ (A. 24, 37) ; and that he was thereafter taken
to the office of a United States Commissioner, where
FBI agents showed petitioner personal effects which
had been taken from his person and apartment in
Mexico and ‘‘questioned him in respect thereto”
(A. 24).

The motion further alleged that at the time of his
arrival at the immigration office in Laredo “[h]is
appearance clearly indicated that he had been physi-
cally assaulted”” (A. 37); that the FBI agents and
Huggins ‘“‘were aware that the required [Mexican]
deportation procedures had not been complied with”
(A. 37); that within a day of petitioner’s arrival
““Huggins and other employees of the United States
immigration office * * * were informed by Hector
Rangel Obregon, chancellor of the Mexican consulate
at Laredo, that petitioner had not been deported
[¢. e, by the duly constituted Mexican immigration

1° The motion alleged that “[p]etitioner was arrested without
a warrant” (A. 24). However, a warrant for petitioner’s arrest
had been outstanding since August 8, 1950 (A. 82). The arrest-
ing officer need not have the warrant in his possession at the time
of the arrest (Rule 4 (¢) (8), F. R. Crim. P.).

448467-—57——38
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authorities]”’ (A. 27); that Obregon ‘‘expressed con-
cern and alarm that this matter had been handled
without the knowledge or approval of the Mexiean
Government or its duly constituted authorities” (A.
27) ; that the prosecution ‘‘was fully informed of the
‘ eircumstances of petitioner’s seizure, {rom the abduc-
tion in Mexico to the time he arrived in Laredo’’ (A.
28) ; and that the FBI agent who arrested petitioner
i Laredo (A. 23-24) ‘‘aided the prosecution in its
Qe-trial preparation” and ‘‘sat at the prosecution’s
table throughout the trial’”’ (A. 28).

On the basis of these and other alleged facts set
forth in the motion, the motion charged that, ‘‘The
prosecution in the course of the trial introduced
evidence to prove that petitioner was deported by the
Government of Mexico. The testimony in support of
this contention was perjurious; the documentary evi-
dence tendered in support thereof was false. This
false evidence was essential to the prosecution’s en-
tire case against petitioner. The prosecution, know-
ing this evidence to be false and perjurious, willfully

intentionally used it to the prejudice of peti-

tioner * * *? (A. 11).

1 The motion alleged that witness Huggins “testified that
the information on the front portion of the record”—i. e., the
“immigration manifest card” (see supra, pp. 10-11)—*“was fur-
nished by petitioner, save for the notation ‘Deported from
Mexico.” This notation, according to the witness, was based
on information and observation (R. 1027-1028)” (A. 13;
emphasis added). However, as is clear from the very pages
of the trial record which the motion cites—R. 1027-1028—Hug-
gins testified that the notation in question was based on his

own personal “observation” alone, and not on any “informa-.

tion” supplied him by anyone else.

17

On the matter of the pertinency of the allegedly
false evidence, the motion averred that ‘‘[t]he evi-
dence was used to represent falsely that petitioner
would not have returned voluntarily to the United
States’’ (A. 16) ; that in fact petitioner ¢would have
voluntarily returned” ‘‘had it not been for his unlaw-
ful abduection” (A. 22); and that ¢‘[t]he prosecution
used the false evidence of a deportation from Mexico
to distort petitioner’s innocent and lawful departure
from the United States,” “falsely pictur[ing] a desire
to visit Mexico as a plan to avoid apprehension be-
cause of a consciousness of guilt’’ (A. 16-17).

The items of evidence helpful to his defense which
petitioner charged had been suppressed by the Gov-
ernment (in addition to evidence tending to establish
that petitioner had not been deported by the regu-
larly constituted immigration authorities of the Gov-
ernment of Mexico) consisted of his “‘tourist card,”
evidencing his ‘‘lawful entry into Mexico’’ (A. 33),
and his ‘‘vaccination certificate,” which, it was as-
serted, ‘‘was obtained in preparation for his return to
the United States’’ (A. 33)—these documents being
among his personal effects which, according to the
motion, were taken from petitioner at the time of his
abduction and subsequent arrest (A. 33).

The allegedly false representations made to the court
by the prosecuting attorney consisted of the latter’s
statements to the court, during oral argument on the
motion in arrest of judgment (see supra, pp. 11-13),
to the effect (1) that petitioner’s affidavit in support
of the motion in arrest ‘‘contains a falsehood in the
statement that there was exhibited amongst other
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things to the Mexican authorities visas. Counsel
ought to know that his client never went into Mexico
with a visa,”” and (2) that the same affidavit ‘“portrays
certainly that this defendant was not honorably es-
corted from Mexico, but that literally he was kicked
out as a deportee” (A. 15). The motion charged
that ‘“‘[t]he representations that petitioner had entered
Mexico without a visa (tourist card) and was sub-
sequently deported by the Government of Mexico were
both false * * *’ (A.15).

(b) The motion charging violation of the extradition
treaty between the United States and Mexico.—On
May 25, 1956, petitioner filed the second Section 2255
motion herein involved (that presented in No. 441)
(A. 79-87). 1t is similar to the first motion, adopting
many of its allegations by reference, but bases the al-

leged invalidity of petitioner’s conviction on the claim

that the manner in which he was arrested constituted
a violation of the 1899 Treaty of Extradition between
the United States and Mexico (31 Stat. 1818) (A. 80,
84-86). By virtue of this alleged violation, the mo-
tion contends, ‘““The United States itself, as well as
its courts, thereby lacked all sovereignty and power to
conduct the proceedings herein’’ (A. 81), with the
alleged consequence that petitioner’s convietion was
null and void (A. 86).

ARGUMENT

The sole question presented by each of these peti-
tions is whether the allegations made in the respective
Section 2255 motions were such as to require a hearing
for the taking of evidence on the issues raised, or
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whether ‘‘the motion and the files and records of the
case conclusively show that the prisoner is entitled to
no relief” (28 U. S. C. 2255, supra, pp. 34, par. 3.)
Judge Kaufman, in denying these motions (after full
argument as to the sufficieney of their allegations (A.
111-196) ), was, of course, well aware of the function of
a Section 2255 motion (A. 202) and acted on the as-
sumption that the court, “[i]n passing on these mo-
tions,”’ should “accept all of petitioner’s averments as
true insofar as they are not inconsistent with the
record’’ (A. 203). We submit that the decision of the
trial judge (with which the unanimous Court of Ap-
peals agreed) that ‘‘[t]he motions and the files and
records of this case show conclusively that the prisoner
is entitled to no relief’’ (A. 228) is clearly correct, and
that, accordingly, the petitions for writs of ‘certiorari
present no question reqmrmg further review by this
Court.

1. THE MOTION OHARGING THE KNOWING USE OF PERJURY
(PETITION FOR CERTIORARI NO. 440) IS WITHQUT
MERIT

(a) We submit that there was no “lmowmg yse of
perjury”’ because there was, in fact, no perjury. We
believe that, for the reasons set forth by Judge Kauf-
man (at A. 217-219), it sufficiently appears from the
trial record itself that “Huggins’ testimony was not
perjurious, nor was the [immigration] manifest false,
as it could rise no higher than Huggins’ explanation
regarding the ‘deportation’ notation’’ (A. 219). As
noted by the trial judge, “petitioner’s contention. that

Huggins perjured himself when he testified that

Sobell had been deported as he then well knew that

Sobell’s seizure had been contrary to Mexican deporta-
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tion procedure’’ is “‘clearly refuted by the cold record
which shows that time after time Huggins insisted
that his notation was not based on official sources, but
was based solely upon his own observations of Sobell’s
summary ejection. It is entirely clear that he was
using the word ‘deported’ to mean expelled or ejected,
and clearly even Sobell must have understood the
notation to have that meaning as he himself signed the
when told that all deportees must do so”
2&.“1217—218) R
Moreover, as Judge Kaufman further remarks, it
‘“‘should also be noted that in summation, Mr. Kuntz,
Sobell’s attorney, pointed out that Sobell had not
been legally deported from Mexico; he argued that if
Sobell had been deported the government would have
shown it by other more competent evidence (R. 1505—
1506). When Mr. Saypol, the prosecutor, summed
up, he nowhere stated—or even inferred—that
Sobell had been legally deported, but stated instead
that ‘the FBI caught up with him and brought him
k and you have him here’ (R. 1534). Patently,
does not show an attempt by the prosecution to
create the impression of legal deportation as is now
charged. Manifestly, it was the prosecution’s inten-
tion to use Huggins’ testimony to point up that
Sobell’s return to this country had been involuntary.
‘Thus it was the natural capstone to the clear and
convincing testimony regarding Sobell’s attempt to

2]t is to be noted, furthermore, that on the reverse side
of the manifest card, under “Remarks,” there appears the

notation “Brought to Immigration office by Mexican police”
(R. 1031).
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flee. Obviously, the defense attorneys also believed
this was the sole purpose of introducing that evidence.
They did not even attempt to bring the question of
improper deportation procedures to the attention of
the Judge out of presence of the jury—a device they
had frequently employed throughout the trial—
despite the fact that 24 hours elapsed between the
time defense counsel saw the immigration manifest
and the time that it was finally introduced into evi-
dence via Huggins’ testimony’’ (A. 218-219). .

(b) Nor did the Government “‘suppress” any evi-
dence favorable to petitioner, as charged.

As noted by the trial judge, ‘“the prosecution can-
not suppress evidence or facts if they are known to
the defense, and if it is true that Sobell was abducted,
this fact was clearly and admittedly within the pos-
session of Sobell and his counsel before the trial
Indeed, his affidavit makes it clear that Sobell knew
that this alleged illegal seizure was highly irregular.
The petitioner now alleges that the defense was not
in possession of sufficient facts showing that the
FBI had instigated this procedure as is charged
now—but this is hard to believe in light of Sobell’s
assertions in his first affidavit," submitted in support
of his motion in arrest of judgment [see R. 31-33]—
that an FBI agent was waiting for him on th
Mexican side” (A. 219-220)* :

*See also A. 220-221, where the judge points out that
it would have been ‘perfectly possible for petitioner to adduce
at his trial the facts surrounding his forcible abduction from
Mexico (and thus refute any idea that he had been formally
deported by Mexico) without taking the witness stand himself
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Similarly, there is no basis for petitioner’s con-
tention that the two documents which were taken
from him—his ‘‘tourist card’’ and ‘‘vaccination cer-
. tificate” (see supra, p. 17)—were suppressed by the.
prosecution. In the first place, as Judge Kaufman
.* notes, “Sobell knew of the evidence’’ and ‘‘knew who
had it,”” yet ‘“‘never sought its production, though he
sought the production of numerous other documents’

. 223-224). Furthermore, “the two items in ques-

were not material to petitioner’s case’ (A. 224)."

(¢) With respect to the alleged misrepresentations
by the prosecuting attorney to the court (see supra,
pp- 17-18), it is sufficient for present purposes to point
out that both alleged misrepresentations, as observed by
Judge Kaufman, “were made®* * * after the verdict

(e. g., by putting his wife on the stand, by cross-examining
Huggins, etc.); but that, in any event, even if to do so had
required his taking the stand, this would not have entailed the
deprivation of any constitutional right, since “The Constitu-
tion,” while it “safeguards the right of a defendant to remain
silent,” “does not assure him that he may:remain silent and still
enjoy the advantages that might have resulted from testifying”
(: v. New York, 346 U. S. 156, 177).

e “tourist card,” as Judge Kaufman ‘explains, “could-

have established merely that Sobell went to Mexico under his
own name; this was never denied or mentioned by the prose-
cution, and was specifically referred to by Mr. Kuntz [peti-
tioner’s attorney] in summation. Further, defendant’s exhibits
in this motion indicate that Sobell’s attorneys had manifests
of the airline on hand which clearly showed he traveled in his
own name. They obviously decided, for trial strategy, not to
introduce them” (A. 224). “As for the vaccination certificate,
Sobell claims this shows he. intended to return:to the United:
States as it would be necessary for re-entry, he neglects to men-
tlon that this was an international certificate equally valid and,
equally necessary for entry into many - forplgn couptries” (A..
204).
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had been rendered, upon argument of the motion in
arrest of judgment’” (A. 224). They accordingly
could not in any event have influenced the verdiet.”

2. THE MOTION CHARGING VIOLATION OF THE EXTRADITION
TREATY BETWEEN THE UNITED S8TATES AND MEXICO (PB-
TITION FOR CERTIORABI .NO. 441) SDﬂLABLY LACKS
MERIT

This motion charged, in substance, that petitioner’s
alleged forcible abduction from Mexico by officers of
the Mexican Secret Police, at the instigation or through
the collusion of agents of the F'BI, constituted a viola-
tion of the Treaty of Extradition between the United
States and Mexieo (31 Stat. 1818), which, in turn, had
the effect of totally depriving the trial court of juris-
diction to try him for the offense of which he was con-
victed (A. 80-86). This argument was likewise re-
jected after thorough consideration by the trial judge
(A. 204-213) as well as by the court below (Pet., N 0.
440, App. 10-12).

(a) At the outset, we submlt that petitioner has

'already fully litigated this issue. Immediately after

his conviction, as we have seen, he moved, in a motion
in arrest of judgment, to set aside the conviction on
the ground that the court lacked jurisdiction because
he had been illegally brought before it (B. 31-33, 1596),

1 See also A. 224-225, where Judge Kaufman points out that
(and explains why) (1) the prosecuting attorney’s comments
“had no effect on post-trial proceedings” (A. 224) and (2)
“were not false” in any event (A. 225). In view of the fact
that the allegedly false representations were made to Judge
Kaufman himself, it is evident that the latter’s appraisal both
of their over-all signiﬁcance in the case and of their truthful-
ness should be conclusive.
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which motion was denied (R. 1599). The Court of
Appeals, on the original appeal from petitioner’s
conviction, likewise fully considered this contention
and held that the issue raised was one of jurisdiction
over petitioner’s person, which had been waived by
his failure to raise it until after trial. United States
V. Rosenberg, 195 F. 2d 583, 602-03 (C. A. 2).* And
in his petition for certiorari to review the affirmance
f his conviction, which this Court denied at 344 U. 8.
the question of jurisdiction was again pressed
(see A. 104-106). Both in his.brief in the Court of
Appeals and in his petition for certiorari, petitioner
relied upon United States v. Rauscher, 119 U. S. 407,
and Cook v. United States, 288 U. S. 102, the same two
cases upon which he relies now (Pet., No. 441, pp.
10-14). While petitioner, to be sure, has now modified
~ his argument from one of lack of personal jurisdiction
to “a total failure of all national and hence judicial
power” (Pet., No. 441, p. 28), and from alleged
violation of international law to alleged violation of
e treaty of extradition between the United States
d Mexico (Pet., No. 441, p. 7-14), the substance
of his argument remains unchanged. As Judge
Kaufman observed (A. 208):
It is clear that petitioner’s present argument

1# Petitioner’s brief to the Court of Appeals on the original
appeal fully argued the issue (see A. 98-103) under the heading
(A.98):

THE UNITED STATES, AND HENCE THB COURT BELOW, HAD NO

' JURISDICTION OF THE PERSON OF SOBELL, SINCE HE WAS FORCI-
BLY SEIZED IN ANOTHER COUNTRY BY OR AT THE INSTANCE OF
THE F. B. 1., AND THE COURT BELOW SHOULD HAVE DIRECTED A
HEARING ON THIS ISSUE.
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4
re jurisdiction is but a twice-told tale in a new
semantic guise. He seems to believe that by
the mere device of changing attorneys and re-
labeling his claims, he may return to court time
after time with the same basic argument. '

“Furthermore, since a court is required to raise the
question of jurisdiction over the subject matter on
its own motion (Defiance. Water Co. V. City of De-
fiance, 191 U. S. 184; United States v. Bradford, 194
F. 24 197 (C. A. 2), certiorari denied, 343 U. S. 979),
the District Court and the Court of Appeals, having
been presented with the allegation of abduction and
the argument of lack of jurisdiction, necessarily con-
sidered the question of jurisdiction over the subject
matter as well as personal jurisdiction. An issue
must be considered litigated where the basie subject
has been presented to three separate courts even
though counsel later develops slightly different legal
phraseology. '

(b) Though petitioner now labels the issue .arising
from the alleged abduction as one of jurisdiction over
the subject matter as distinguished from jurisdiction
over his person, it is clear that the real issue, never-
theless, is personal jurisdiction—which, as has been
noted, he waived by failure to raise it until after his
trial” For, labels apart, the only issue is whether he

"]t is well settled that jurisdictional objections, except as
to jurisdiction over the subject matter, are waived by failure
to present them in a timely manner. Albrecht v. United States,
278 U. S. 1, 8-9; Pon v. United States, 168 F. 2d 373 (C. A. 1).
Indeed, petitioner’s counsel expressly conceded at the hearing
below that “if we were dealing with the matter of personal
jurisdiction, we are out of court” (A. 132).




26

[ ]

was properly before the trial court. Two of the very
cases relied upon by petitioner (Pet., No. 441, pp.
26-28) make it clear that the irregular seizure of a
person involves only the question of personal jurisdie-

tion. United States v. Rauscher, supra, 119 U. 8. at
" 433 (““jurisdiction of the person’’); United States v.
Ferris, 19 F. 2d 925, 926-927 (N. D. Cal.) (‘‘jurisdic-
tion over the person’’)® Ford v. United States, 273
.S.'593, 606, settles the question:

The issue whether the ship was seized within
the preseribed limit did not affect the question
of the defendant’s guilt or innocence. It only
affected the right of the court to hold thesr
persons for trial. It was necessarily prelimi-
pary to that trial. The proper way of raising
the issue of fact of the place of seizure was
by a plea to the jurisdiction. A plea to the
jurisdiction must precede the plea of not guilty.
Such a plea was not filed. The effect of the fail-
ure to file it was to waive the question of the
jurisdiction of the persons of defendants.
" [Emphasis added.] *

W Petitioner’s reliance on Cook v. United States, supra, 288
U. S. 102 (Pet., No. 441, pp. 26-27) is also misplaced. There,
proper objection was made before trial (288 U. S. at 108), and the
Court merely stated that such an objection is not “lost by the
entry of an answer to the merits” (id. at 122).

» Petitioner attempts to distinguish Ford by claiming that
“[t]here was no such jurisdictional issue in Ford, because there
was no extraterritorial action or seizure in violation of the treaty.
The seizures in Ford were made strictly in accordance with
treaty” (Pet., No. 441, p. 28). This Court, however, clearly stated
in Ford that “[t]he main questions presented are, first, whether
the seizure of the vessel was in accordance with the treaty ® ¢ *”

P {4

(¢) Finally, even if petitioner had raised the in-
stant issue of personal jurisdietion in time, and con-
ceding arguendo all of the facts alleged by petitioner
in his motion, those facts would not have constituted
a sufficient basis to oust the trial court of jurisdiction
to try him. Petitioner admits that he was appre-
hended by officers of the Secret Police of the Federal
District of Mexico and that he was taken to the offices
of the Direccion Federal de Seguridad of the Federal
District of Mexico (A. 22).* His wife and children
were also seized by Mexican police officers and taken
to their offices (A. 23). On the following day, accord-
ing to the motion, petitioner and his wife and children
were driven north in separate automobiles toward the
Dnited States, still in the custody of Mexican police
officers (A. 23). Not until he reached the border
was petitioner turned over to agents of the FBI (A.
23-24).

Since the authorities agree that there is no right
of asylum in a foreign country even where there is
an extradition treaty (e. g., Ker v. Illsnosis, 119 U. 8.
436, 442), Mexico had the unquestioned right to re-
conduct petitioner from its territory with or without
cause or procedural protection. See Article 33 of
the Mexican Constitution, Pet., No. 440, App. 20-21;
1 Oppenheim, International Law (8th ed. Lauterpacht,

(273 U. S. at 600). The statement quoted in the text, supra,
was made on the assumption that the seizure had been illegal
(. at 605).

. #The latter fact indicates that t.he reconduction of the peti-
tioner to the border was participated in or approved by Men-
can officials of considerable standing.
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1955), § 326; Wheaton, International Law (6th ed.
Keith, 1929), p. 210. 'While petitioner claims that his
seizure and reconduction were the result of a plan
organized and supervised by agents of the FBI (Pet.,
No. 441, p. 7), the substantial participation of Mexican
officials is enough to bring the case within the above
principle. Preuss, Kidnapping of Fugitives From
Justice on Foreign Territory, 29 Am. J. of Inter.

w 502, 507. In the Savarkar case, reported in
Scott, Hague Court Reports (1916), p. 275, the Perma-
nent Court of Arbitration held that neither an extradi-
tion treaty nor international law obligated Britain to
return to France a British fugitive who had escaped
to France and been restored to a British ship through
the cooperation of subordinate French and British
police. The Permanent Court held that such coopera-
tion by . the French police, without immediate dis-
avowal by their superiors, constituted legitimate
reconduction. There thus exist no grounds for con-
sidering the forcible removal of petitioner from Mex-

-as in violation of either the extradition treaty or
ternational law.

Moreover, even if petitioner was removed from
Mexico in violation of the extradition treaty, it is well
settled that, except for the totally different circum-
stances. presented by the Rauscher case, discussed
tnfra at pp. 30-31, jurisdiction over the person of a
defendant in a criminal case is not impaired by the
manner in which he is brought before the court. See
Note, 165 A. L. R. 947. The federal courts have thus
consistently held that only the government whose
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sovereignty has been violated, not the defendant,™
may validly protest a seizure illegal under either in-
ternational law or extradition treaties. E. g., Ker v.
Illtnots, supra, 119 U. 8. at 443, 444;™ Chandler v.
United States, 171 F. 2d 921 (C. A.:- 1), certiorari
denied, 336 U. 8. 918; United States v. Unverzagt, 299
Fed. 1015 (W. D. Wash.), affirmed, 5 F. 2d 492
(C. A. 9), certiorari denied, 269 U. 8. 566; United
States v. Insull, 8 F. Supp. 310 (N, D. II.).* In

3 The only remedy of the defendant is to sue his abductors
for trespass and false imprisonment. Ker v. IWinois, supra,
119 U. S. at 444.

# Petitioner’s attempts to dlstmgulsh the Ker case (Pet No.
441, pp. 20-22) are competely lacking in substance. (1) While
Ker involved a state prosecution, treaties govern state and
federal courts equally and subsequent federal cases have refused
to make any distinction between cases arising in state and
federal courts. E. g., United States v. Toombs, 67 F. 2d T44
(C. A. 5); United States v. Unverzagt, 299 Fed. 1015 (W. D.
‘Wash.), affirmed, 5 F. 2d 492 (C. A. 9), certiorari denied, 269
U. S. 566. (2) Whether or not the treaty between the United
States and Peru was in fact in force, the Court throughout its
opinion assumed that it was in force. (3) Not only is there no
indication in the decision thgt the Court considered the case
a8 if Ker had been expelled by the duly constituted governing
authority, but the Court explicitly stated that “it was a clear
case of kidnapping * * * without any pretenea of authority
under the treaty * * *” (119 U. S. at 443).

33 Petitioner also tries to distinguish the lower court decisions
here cited (Pet., No. 441, p. 24). But these attempted distinc-
tions are likewise baseless since the courts expressly state that
the defendant has no standing to challenge a violation of a
treaty. Compare the rule that international immunities are
for the benefit of the state, rather than the individual, and may
be waived without the consent of the individual. See, Brief
for the Petitioners, Wilson, ¢t al. v. Girard, No. 1103, O. T,
1956, pp. 34-37 (authorities cited).



30

Frisbie v. Collins, 342 U. S. 519, 522, this Court re-
affirmed the holding of Ker, which is dispositive of
the merits of the present issue, in the most emphatic
terms: ““This Court has never departed from the rule
announced in Ker v. Illinois * * * that the power of
a court to try a person for crime is not impaired by
the fact that he had been brought within the court’s
jurisdiction by reason of a ‘forcible abduction.” No

rsuasive reasons are now presented to justify over-
ruling this line of cases.”

Neither United States v. Rauscher, supra, nor Cook
v. United States, supra, relied upon by petitioner
(Pet., No. 441, pp. 10-14), in any way undermines
the holding of Ker as approved in Frisbte. The Cook
case was a civil suit involving the illegal seizure of a
foreign vessel. In the present case, petitioner is an
individual and a citizen of this country. The Cook
case itself carefully distinguished prior cases in-
volving seizures of vessels of American registration
(288 U. 8. at 122). In addition, the courts have
‘consistently differentiated between civil and criminal

eases in which jurisdiction of the defendant has been
secured by illegal means. In In re Johnson, 167 U. 8.
120, 126, this Court stated that ‘‘[t]he law will not
permit a person to be kidnapped or decoyed within
the jurisdiction for the purpose of being compelled to
answer to a mere private claim, but in criminal cases
the interests of the public override * * *.” The
Rauscher case, which held that a defendant extradited
for one offense under an extradition treaty cannot be
tried for a different offense, provides the one excep-
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tion to the rule that the federal courts do not concern
themselves with how the defendant comes before them.
But Ker, which was decided on the same day as
Rauscher, both the opinions being written by the same
Justice (Miller), distinguishes Rauscher on the
ground that (119 U. 8. at 443) ‘it is quite a different
case when the plaintiff in error comes to this country
in the manner in which he was brought here, clothed
with no rights which a proceeding under the treaty
could have given him * * *.”’

In summary, apart from the fact that petitioner ﬁrst
waived the contentions which he now seeks to assert,
and that they have been previously litigated, it is per-
fectly plain that the contentions are entirely lacking in
merit.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the petitions for writs
of certiorari should be denied,

Respectfully submitted.

J. Lee RANKIN,

Solicstor General.
WoLiam F. ToMPKINS,
Assistant Attorney General.

Panrr R. MONAHAN,
CarL G. CoBEN,

Bruce J. TERRIS,
Attorneys.
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N
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i e : ALL INFORMA TION CONTAINED ;!::ont
. D) WERTIN }5 UY LASSIFIED ,,m;—-,,s__
SUBJECT: ) ORTON SOBELL, wa DATE 422, Rosen
ESPIONAGE Tamn .
o> »4%2 doeme—

Special Agent Goodwtn, New York Office, calle

12:15 a.m., 10-12,57, and ad ed that interview of Helen
N Sobell by Joh 1ngate on th —eg%gggg,ﬂéisht Beat" from 11:30
//>1/’ to 12:00 midfiight, 10-11-57 on Station WABD, Channel S, N§C, was
- monitored by the New York Office at the request of yr. Nichols.

Morton Sobell, is innocent and that the datomic Bomb secret was no

secret according to scientists who reviewed facts in the case.

Mrs. Sobell said the legal problems confronting the Supreme Court

consist of theee motions. The first is based on the prosecution's

use of perjured testimony. The gsecond has to do with the erxtraditior

laws of Mexico whiéh were violated dy virtue of Sobell's being

kzdnaped and the third is based on a recent opinion of the Supreme

;- Court in the Gruenwald-Halperin case in which the trial qf these

h . two individuals was invalidated cause of the prosgcution's

i reference to their taking the Fjfth Amendment whic) was prejudicial.
Qh ‘4¢/7)R5 - ”

’ ¥ingate asked Helef/Sobell why Morto

the witness stand and she said defense attorn

case had been presented by the Government.

l During the program, Mrs. Sobell stated her husband,

obell did n'bz"‘tak§é

8 tqld him that no

‘ Helen Sobell said she is willing to take funds from any
source and would not repudiate communist supporte.:
,4‘,.
RS Goodwin 8aid New York would send in a summary teletype on
above on 10-12-57 and a transcript of interview would dbe forwarded
by 10-14-57.

" Mr. Nichols was advised of the above at 12:30 a.m.,
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_ a3 1106
RECOMMENDATION: RECORDED-45 M — :

INDEXED - :
None, this is for%gonﬁation. 10 0CT 16 195
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A_MEMORANDUM FILED WITH THE SUPIEHI COURT, THE LAWYERS CHARG!D
m JUSTICI DEPARTMENT WITH JGNORING *THE pEmanDs OF FAIR PLAY, i

‘OBILL, VHO IS SERVING A 30 YEAR TERM IN ALCATRAZ FEDERAL PRISON, N
f’lAgoAYNIU APPEAL ﬂFOlt THE lﬂcl! COURT UHICII HAY BE ACTED UPON NE‘T ‘

TKE HERORANDUH SAID 'LOOK MCAZ!NE' FOR OCT. 29 CARRIES AW ARTICLI A
Tgt gASE FOR WHICH 1T HAD ACCtSS T0 INFORHATION PREVIOUSLY UELD
$lCRET HE COVERNMINT, :
A THE MEMORANDUM TOOK PARTICULM! ISSUE VITH A STATKHENT !l THE ARTICLE
AROUT SOBELL'S DIFORTATIQ FROM MEXICO. SOBELL CONTENDS THAT NE WAS
% %A};.Y-"Kl’ggAPED FROH xICO CIT’I AT THE TII!I OF HIS ARREST. o
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On 10-11-57 Jo Wi ate, who conducts _ interviews On  Wieweri —

Dumont television show "Nighl Beat” interviewed Helen .S’obeIZ, Tele. Roon —
" wife of the subject. By airtel 10-14-57 Wew York Ojfice s —

nished transcrzpt of the interview.
. 4‘,.“"414,_

A review of the transcript Jalls to reflect any new
in.formation. Helen Sobell repeated the stereotyped claims she has
been making as a paid employee of the National Commitiee te Secure.
Justice in the Rosenberg Case, stating that her husband was innocent,
that the trial was not fair, the Government had no ., cage against her
husdand and only one witness testified against him. {This last
statement refers to Max Elitcher, main Government witress against
Sobells actually William Danziger testified as to his actions as
a mail drop for Sobell, 8ix Mexican witnesses testified to his
activities in Mexico,and INS Inspector Huggins told of Sobell’s
deportation). She also told of the subject’s latesit appeal to the
United States Supreme Court and related the grounds for this appeal.
When asked why her husband did not take the stand In his own defense,
8he stated his trial attorneys told him that no case had been made
against him. When confronted with complimentary statements made dy
Emanuel Bloch, Rosendberg defense attorney, at the end of the trial
to the court, she retorted that Bzoch was not the attorney Jor Sobell.

Fhen aaked if any of her money came Jrom communist sources, i
she answered, "As far as I know, no.” She stated she would welcome {/
support from anyone and would not guestion the person’s political /pi
affiliation. i
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COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY

QUBCOMMITTEE TO INVESTIGATE THE ADMINISTRATION OF
THE INTERNAL SECURITY ACT AND OTHER INTERNAL SECURITY LAWS
UNDER $. RES. 368 (5157 CONGRESS) *

October 21, 1957

Ve P VU U PIDUE- SPURE O
-

SUBCOMMITTER;
JAMES O, EASTLAND, MISS.,
CHAIRMAN
OLIN D. JOMNSTON, 8. C.
JOMN L. MC CLELLAN, ARX.
SAM J. ERVIN, JR., N. C.
MATTHEW M. NELLY, W. VA

WILLIAM K. JENNER, IND.

Mr. Louis B. Nichols

Roam 5640
Washington, D. C.

Dear Lou:

hearing?

Pederal Bureau of Investigation

Enclosed herewith is a copy of an
anonymous letter we received which I am sending
you at Judge Morris?! suggestion.
sounds extremely interesting. 1Is there any
possibility that you can supplement the infoma--

tion in such &8 way that we can use it for a

Sincerely yours,

/
— BENJAMINWUANDEL
Researeh Director
Internal Secun.tx Subcommittee

ALY, INFORMATION CONTAINED

HFREIN IS UNCLASSIFIED
DATE JIZ_’A;BXL

2. J’f.?/;b;/

A

N

\\

UNRECORDED copy FILED |

The letter
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TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

If ou will look into the activities of one Symie.

1tin,From 1950 to 1955 you will find that thete -
'Td.a strong connection between she and Morton Sob // y
el, both being employed by Reeves Instrument in /Y-
Project Cyclon®eese

She may-be known 1 the party as
§adie or Selms or Sylv Shweptz o lack, She was the
only secretary in the project cyclone, and altho she was
classified as secret she handled all the typing including
topsecret papers, she also knew where Sobel went when he
ran . She also registered as a democrat and worked for the
Y party at election time, >

N Ben jam' imlisgh or as he is known now as
- p&Hemlock, her sisters husband was arrested for distributing
cormunIB3t literature . But not “convicted. His daughter

left home because of his political activities, He hides behind
. the fact that his brother is a it.Colonel in the Air Force,

(i} Dpr, Juliug/Jaffe, another brother-in -law, is

the mind behind all of thém, hd &nd his wife have been very acti

ve in the support of both Sobel and the Rosenbergs,
: Mrs Amitin has for the past six years

sent her son th & communist frontcamp. Camp Woodlend, which

is run by Norman Studer, who was investigated recently for

his activities with children,

Best of lLuck

Disgruntled American
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